
 

       
 

 
County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk  Fax: 01865 783195  Media Enquiries 01865 323870 
 

To: Members of the Shadow Oxfordshire Health & Wellbeing Board 
 

Notice of a Meeting of the Shadow Oxfordshire Health 
& Wellbeing Board 

 

Thursday, 14 March 2013 at 2.00 pm 
 

Meeting Rooms 1 & 2, County Hall, Oxford OX1 1ND 
 

 
Membership 

 
Chairman – Councillor Ian Hudspeth 

Vice Chairman - Dr Stephen Richards 
Board Members: 
 
Councillor Mark Booty 
(West Oxfordshire District Council) 

Chairman of the Health Improvement Board 

Sue Butterworth Chair of Oxfordshire LINk 

Councillor Louise Chapman 
(Oxfordshire County Council) 

Chairman of the Children & Young People’s Board 

Councillor Arash Fatemian 
(Oxfordshire County Council) 

Chairman of the Adult Health & Social Care Board 

John Jackson Director for Social & Community Services 

Dr Mary Keenan Vice Chairman of the Children & Young People’s Board 

Dr Joe McManners Vice Chairman of the Adult Health & Social Care Board 

Dr Jonathan McWilliam Director of Public Health 

Councillor Val Smith 
(Oxford City Council) 

Vice Chairman of the Health Improvement Board 

Jim Leivers Director for Children’s Services 

Matthew Tait Area Director (Designate), Thames Valley NHS 
Commissioning Board 

 
Notes: 
 
• Date of next meeting: 25 July 2013 – which will be the inaugural meeting of the statutory Board.

 
Peter G. Clark  
County Solicitor March 2013  
  
Contact Officer: Julie Dean Tel: (01865) 815322 

Email: julie.dean@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

Declarations of Interest 
 
The duty to declare….. 
Under the Localism Act 2011 it is a criminal offence to 
(a) fail to register a disclosable pecuniary interest within 28 days of election or co-option (or re-

election or re-appointment), or 
(b) provide false or misleading information on registration, or 
(c) participate in discussion or voting in a meeting on a matter in which the member or co-opted 

member has a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

Whose Interests must be included? 
The Act provides that the interests which must be notified are those of a member or co-opted 
member of the authority, or 
• those of a spouse or civil partner of the member or co-opted member; 
• those of a person with whom the member or co-opted member is living as husband/wife 
• those of a person with whom the member or co-opted member is living as if they were civil 

partners. 
(in each case where the member or co-opted member is aware that the other person has the 
interest). 

What if I remember that I have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the Meeting?. 
The Code requires that, at a meeting, where a member or co-opted member has a disclosable 
interest (of which they are aware) in any matter being considered, they disclose that interest to 
the meeting. The Council will continue to include an appropriate item on agendas for all 
meetings, to facilitate this. 

Although not explicitly required by the legislation or by the code, it is recommended that in the 
interests of transparency and for the benefit of all in attendance at the meeting (including 
members of the public) the nature as well as the existence of the interest is disclosed. 

A member or co-opted member who has disclosed a pecuniary interest at a meeting must not 
participate (or participate further) in any discussion of the matter; and must not participate in any 
vote or further vote taken; and must withdraw from the room. 

Members are asked to continue to pay regard to the following provisions in the code that “You 
must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer an advantage or 
disadvantage on any person including yourself” or “You must not place yourself in situations 
where your honesty and integrity may be questioned…..”. 

Please seek advice from the Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting should you have any doubt 
about your approach. 

List of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests: 
Employment (includes“any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain”.), Sponsorship, Contracts, Land, Licences, Corporate Tenancies, Securities. 

For a full list of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and further Guidance on this matter please see 
the Guide to the New Code of Conduct and Register of Interests at Members’ conduct guidelines. 
http://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/Insite/Elected+members/ or contact 
Rachel Dunn on (01865) 815279 or Rachel.dunn@oxfordshire.gov.uk for a hard copy of the 
document. 
 
 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of 
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer 
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 



 

 

 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Welcome by Chairman, Councillor Ian Hudspeth  
 

2. Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  
 

3. Declarations of Interest - see guidance note opposite  
 

4. Petitions and Public Address  
 

5. Note of Decisions of Last Meeting  
 

 To approve the Note of Decisions of the meeting held on 22 November 2012                  
(HWB5) and to receive information arising from them.  
 

6. Terms of Reference for Statutory and Partnership Boards  
 

 2:05 
5 minutes 
 
Person(s) responsible: Members of the Health & Wellbeing Board 
Person giving report: Peter Clark, Head of Law & Culture 
 
Peter Clark  will advise on the pathway for approving the Terms of Reference for the 
statutory Board and for the Partnership Boards.  
 

7. Performance Report  
 

 2:10 
15 minutes 
 
Person(s) responsible: Members of the Health & Wellbeing Board 
Person giving report: Director of Public Health 
 
There will be a review (HWB7) of current performance against all the outcomes set out 
in the Health & Wellbeing Strategy. Performance for each Partnership will be presented 
in turn: 

• Children & Young People (Jim Leivers and Dr. Mary Keenan) 
• Adult Health & Social Care (John Jackson and Dr Joe McManners) 
• Health Improvement Board (Dr Jonathan McWilliam) 

 
Action Required: Members of the Board are asked to note the report and 
presentations and to consider any action required.  
  



- 2 - 
 

 

8. Themed Discussion - Implications for Oxfordshire of the Mid-
Staffordshire Report  

 

 2:25 
30 minutes 
 
Person(s) Responsible: Lorraine Foley, Director of Commissioning & Partnerships, 
OCCG 
Person giving report: Dr. Stephen Richards, Chief Clinical Officer, OCCG  
 
In the light of the mid-Staffordshire report, there will be a discussion led by Dr. Stephen 
Richards, on the assurance available in Oxfordshire.  
 
There are two background documents attached at HWB8. These are: 
 
(a) The Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust Public Inquiry Press Statement – 

delivered by Robert Francis QC; and 
(b) Briefing entitled ‘Considering the Implications for Oxfordshire of the Francis Report 

on the Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust Public Inquiry Current Clinical 
Assurance available in Oxfordshire.’ 

 

9. Safeguarding Adults Board - Annual Report 2011-2012  
 

 2:55 
15 minutes 
 
Person(s) responsible: John Jackson, Director of Social & Community Services 
Report presented by: Donald McPhail, Chairman of the Adult Safeguarding Board 
 
Donald McPhail, Chairman of the Oxfordshire Adult Safeguarding Board will present the 
Annual Report (HWB9). 
 
Action Required: to note the Annual Report and to discuss its recommendations.  
 

10. Planning processes and information on resources that can be 
influenced by the Health & Wellbeing Board  

 

 3:10  
35 minutes 
 
This item concerns the operational planning and financial issues for Oxfordshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group and Oxfordshire County Council in delivering Health & Wellbeing 
priorities, including the use of pooled budgets. 
 
There will be a discussion, led by the Director of Social & Community Services, the 
Director of Commissioning & Partnerships, OCCG, the Director of Public Health and the 
Director for Children’ s Services, on the integration of budgets for the Oxfordshire 
Clinical Commissioning Group and Oxfordshire County Council and the arrangements 
for transparent governance in joint working. 



- 3 - 
 

 

 
Two background papers are attached at HWB10 relating to: 
 

• The Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group planning process; and 
• An overview of resources that can be influenced by the Health & Wellbeing 

Board. 
 

11. Reports from Partnership Boards  
 

 3:45 
15 minutes 
 
The Vice  - Chairman of the Children & Young People Partnership Board and the 
Chairmen of the Adult Health & Social Care Partnership Board and the Health 
Improvement Board will each present an oral update on the activities of the Boards 
since the last meeting. 
 
Action Required: To receive updates from each Partnership Board.  
 

PAPERS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
• The Dementia Plan  - which can be viewed through the following link: 

http://www.oxfordshirepct.nhs.uk/your-health/mental-health/dementia.aspx 
 

• The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) summary report for the Health & 
Wellbeing Board 2012 – 13 is attached. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

    
 

 

 
 

SHADOW OXFORDSHIRE HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD 
 
OUTCOMES of the meeting held on Thursday, 22 November 2012 commencing at 
2.00 pm and finishing at 4.00 pm 
 
Present: 
 

 

Board Members: Councillor Ian Hudspeth – in the Chair 
 

 Dr Stephen Richards (Vice-Chairman) 
District Councillor Mark Booty 
Councillor Val Smith 
Dr Jonathan McWilliam 
Sue Butterworth 
Dr Joe McManners 
John Jackson 
Dr Mary Keenan 
Jim Leivers 
Councillor Melinda Tilley (in place of Councillor Louise 
Chapman) 
 

Officers: 
 

 

Whole of meeting  Joanna Simons, Peter Clark and Julie Dean 
(Oxfordshire County Council) 
 

Part of meeting 
 

Jim Leivers (Oxfordshire County Council) 

 
These notes indicate the outcomes of this meeting and those responsible for taking the 
agreed action. For background documentation please refer to the agenda and supporting 
papers available on the Council’s web site (www.oxfordshire.gov.uk.) 
 
If you have a query please contact Julie Dean Tel: (01865) 815322 (Email: 
julie.dean@oxfordshire.gov.uk) 
 

 ACTION 

1. Welcome by Chairman, Councillor Ian Hudspeth 
(Agenda No. 1) 
 

 

2. Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments 
(Agenda No. 2) 

 

 

  

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



 

Councillor Arash Fatemian and Matthew Tait sent their apologies. 
 Councillor Melinda Tilley attended in place of Councillor Louise 
Chapman. 
 
3. Declarations of Interest - see guidance note opposite 

(Agenda No. 3) 
 

 

 
There were no declarations of interest submitted. 
 

 

4. Petitions and Public Address 
(Agenda No. 4) 

 

 

 
There were no requests to petition or to address members of the 
Board. 
 

 

5. Note of Decisions of Last Meeting 
(Agenda No. 5) 

 

 

 
The decision note (HWB5) of the meeting held on 26 July 2012 
was approved and signed as a correct record. 
 

 
Julie Dean 

6. Amendment to Terms of Reference 
(Agenda No. 6) 

 

 

 
It was AGREED that the Terms of Reference, as agreed on 24 
November 2011, be amended to include the post of National 
Commissioning Board Local Area Team Director for Thames 
Valley within the membership of the Health & Wellbeing Board. 
 

 
Peter Clark 

7. Performance Report 
(Agenda No. 7) 

 

 

 
The Board had before them a performance report reviewing 
current performance against all the outcomes set out in the 
Health & Wellbeing Strategy (HWB7(a)). 
 
A table showing the agreed measures under each priority in the 
Strategy, expected performance and current performance was 
attached at HWB 7(a) Appendix A. 
 
It was noted that: 
 

• 6.1 and 6.4 were the subject of discussion later in the 
Agenda (Item 9); 

• The targets relating to 4.4, 4.5, 9.2,11.2 would improve 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



 

during the year/academic year. 
 
With regard to: 
 
Priority 1.2  - ‘Reduce emergency admissions to hospital with 
infections by 10% year on year – it was agreed that the data 
should be investigated to see whether causes of infection could 
be identified, in order that current trends could be explained. 
 
Priority 6.2 - ‘No more than 400 older people per year to be 
permanently admitted to a care home from October 2012’  - Sue 
Butterworth directed the Board’s attention to a recent report 
produced by the Oxfordshire LINk on Dignity & Quality of Care in 
Homes, particularly in Dementia care. 
 
Val Messenger, Deputy Director of Public Health, presented an 
in-depth report on the Bowel Screening indicator which was not 
meeting its target (HWB7(b)) asking why the target of 60% over 
the last 2 years had not been reached; what initiatives and 
actions were currently in place to improve the position; and what 
further initiatives and planned actions had been identified for the 
future. 
 
Members of the Board  suggested the following actions which 
might be built into the campaign: 
 

• GP’s could promote the bowel screening programme to 
improve uptake; 

• To replicate the useful process of analysing the data 
collected from various GP practices (as has been the 
practice with immunisation data) to gain insight into who 
was not taking up the screening offer); 

• Distribute information at popular events  attended by the 
target population such as football/rugby matches or 
training events etc; 

• To target people living in retired people’s housing 
developments and with groups planning for retirement. 

 
It was AGREED to note the reports and to note also that further 
information would be available as part of regular performance 
reports to the Board. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
) 
) 
) 
) 
Jonathan 
McWilliam 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
 
 

8. Public Involvement Network (PIN) 
(Agenda No. 8) 

 

 

 
Sue Butterworth, Chair of Oxfordshire LINk gave an update on 
the activities undertaken by the Public Involvement Network to 
ensure that public engagement was embedded and to ensure that 
the genuine opinions and experiences of people in Oxfordshire 

 

Page 3



 

underpin the work of the Health & Wellbeing Board. Examples 
included a new PIN website to allow two way engagement and 
proposals for PIN briefing sessions prior to future Board 
meetings. 
 
She welcomed a number of young people who were in the 
audience and who were contributing to public engagement. 
These were part of a dynamic, diverse group  being formed which 
included faith groups, disability groups and the military, to name a 
few. 
 
The Board viewed a short film that had been produced by the 
PIN, which reproduced the draft Older People’s Commissioning 
Strategy in visual form, helping people to engage in its 
development. 
 
The Board thanked Sue Butterworth for her report. 
 
9. Frail Older People - Draft Action Plan 

(Agenda No. 9) 
 

 

 
The Board were asked to endorse a covering report and draft 
Action Plan (HWB9) which related closely to several of the adults’ 
indicators in the joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy, in particular 
around delayed transfers of care, reablement services and 
admission to care homes (indicators 6.1, 6.2 and 6.4). The Action 
Plan was prepared in response to the Themed Discussion on 
Frail Older People item of business at the last meeting, and also 
in response to continuing performance issues. The Plan focused 
on immediate priorities (by March 2013) as well as longer term 
actions that would link closely to action plans for the joint Health 
& Social Care older people’s commissioning strategy, due for 
completion by April 2013. 
 
Dr Richards commented that much work was in progress to 
deliver a discharge pathway, covering a broad spectrum of 
activity. Some of this work had been escalated in order to deliver 
a reduction in delayed transfers of care. John Jackson endorsed 
this pointing out that an agreement with the Oxfordshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group had been reached on a Discharge Policy. 
Feedback on the Plan had been given by Age UK and the Older 
People’s Panel and all that was required was a discussion with 
Oxfordshire Health and Oxford University Radcliffe NHS Trust. 
 
The Board gave the following responses: 
 

• It was a good Plan with a multiplicity of initiatives, giving 
greater accountability and more of a sense of what the 
priorities were. It was hoped that it would initiate proactive 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



 

activity which would, in turn, lead to greater efficiency; 
• It was imperative that all organisations work together in a 

coordinated and integrated manner ie. a single multi-
disciplinary team to be in place to make the discharge and 
following this, a single point of access team to plan and 
co-ordinate services. Assessments to be undertaken at 
home following discharge. A monitoring group to be 
formed to ensure that the outcomes are good, together 
with a number of indicators to be recognised by 
commissioners within the public domain; 

• It is necessary for information to be in the system as a 
whole for GP’s to access; 

• The reality was that the numbers of older people would 
increase, but the public purse would be tighter. However, 
locally progress had already been made to implement the 
recommendations in the Director of Public Health’s Annual 
Report for more Plans to be joint and commissioners more 
united; 

• The three areas to be focussed on were firstly, the 
integration of clinical and social care teams; secondly, the 
prevention agenda; and thirdly, the need to give 
constructive help to villages and communities in order for 
them to help themselves. There is a requirement for more 
supporting volunteers and, in turn, for volunteers and 
carers to be supported in a more co-ordinated way; 

• There was still a need to keep the agreed shared finances 
in an uncomplicated, formalised pooled budget as part of 
the approach to outcomes based commissioning;  

 
• More liaison between the GP Locality Leads and the 

District Councils was required, in light of  the latter’s 
involvement with the Public Health portfolio and their 
contact with the voluntary sector; and 

• There was a need for a county wide specialist money 
management advice service to be provided for individuals 
managing their own care. 

 
Following a lengthy debate, it was RESOLVED to endorse the 
draft Action Plan and to agree to wider discussion with NHS 
providers, GP localities and representatives of older people and 
carers. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
John Jackson/ 
Dr Stephen 
Richards/ 
Dr Joe 
McManners 
 

10. Reports from Partnership Boards 
(Agenda No. 10) 

 

 

 
Councillor Mark Booty, Dr Joe McManners and Dr Mary Keenan 
gave oral progress reports on the recent activity of each of the 
three Partnership Boards: 

 

Page 5



 

 
Health Improvement Board – Councillor Mark Booty reported that 
the Board was pleased with progress to date but recognised that 
there was a great deal of work to be done. Activity included: 
 

• A workshop had been held in July where participation of 
the voluntary sector and other partners was welcomed. A 
range of affiliated projects were identified which would help 
to achieve the aims of the Health Improvement Board; 

• Work was underway to identify priorities and targets for the 
Board in respect of housing/homelessness issues in the 
Strategy; 

• The Board had recognised the value of joint working with 
Trading Standards on enforcement of under age sales 
legislation including alcohol and tobacco sales; 

• The next steps included joint workshops with the Adult 
Health & Social Care and  Children & Young People 
Partnership Boards; and 

• A joint meeting had taken place between the district 
council members sitting on the Boards  to initially open up 
discussion on housing, with the aim of sharing ideas 
across all stakeholders. 

 
All acknowledged that Government changes to the Welfare 
Benefits system would be of crucial importance to service 
delivery. This will be a feature of the work of the Health 
Improvement Board in their priority of preventing homelessness. 
However, before issues could be tackled, the manner in which the 
Supporting People programme would move forward had to be 
dealt with.  
 
Sue Butterworth pointed out positive signs of collaboration across 
agencies. Furthermore, the Oxfordshire Rural Community 
Council, the Oxfordshire Community & Voluntary Action and the 
Oxfordshire Wheel were encouraging organisations to work 
together and to look for different solutions. 
 
Adult Health & Social Care Partnership Board – Dr Joe 
McManners gave a brief presentation on the work of the Board as 
follows: 
 

• Universal credits had been the focus of discussion at the 
last meeting. Discussion was to continue at the next 
meeting; 

• A successful workshop had been convened as a prequel to 
the consultation on the launch of the Older People 
Commissioning Strategy which was to take place during 
December and January; 

• The Board had discussed the development of Capable 
Community Services; 

Page 6



 

• A flow chart of services was to be developed to assist 
people to access services; 

• Links were being forged with the Safeguarding Adults 
Board. 

 
Children & Young People Partnership Board – Dr Mary Keenan 
reported that the Board had been busy with the following 
activities: 
 

• A workshop had been held in July to focus on the period of 
transition from the Child & Adolescent Mental Health 
Services (CAMHS) to the Adult Mental Health services; 

• A joint workshop had been convened with the Children’s 
Board on child sexual exploitation, which was attended by 
200+  people, with the aim of developing a Strategy and a 
toolkit for supporting staff. The event featured the drama 
production  ‘Chelsea’s Choice’ which had proved highly 
innovative in tackling the issue nationally; 

• The Board was also focusing on maternity services with 
the aim of providing a high quality service for all, 
particularly for vulnerable groups; 

• Links for various vulnerable groups were being made with 
Safeguarding Children’s Board; and 

• Good practice was being shared with partners on raising 
achievement in education. 

 
Councillor Booty, Dr McManners and Dr Keenan were thanked for 
their updates. 

 
 
 
 
. 

 
 
 
 
 in the Chair 
  
Date of signing   

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



HWB7 

 
 

Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board 
14 March 2013 

 
Performance Reporting  

 
Current Performance 
 

1. A table showing the agreed measures under each priority in the Joint Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy, expected performance and current performance is 
attached as Appendix A.  
 

2. It is worth noting that although the most up to date figures possible have been 
included, in some cases this relates to quarter 2 (July - September) as quarter 
3 (October - December) is still being verified. Where possible, interim 
performance has been indicated in the notes column. 
 

3. There are also a number of targets that will not be reported on a quarterly 
basis. This may be where data is collected or released less frequently (as the 
result of an annual survey for example), or because work this year is focused 
on establishing baselines for new measures.  
 

4. Current performance can be summarised as follows: 
 
18 indicators are Green 
2 indicators are Amber (defined as within 5% of target) 
6 indicators are Red 
2 indicators expected to report in Q3 do not have information available yet 
23 indicators were not expected to report this quarter. 
 

5. Current performance is varied, and appropriate action is being taken where it 
does not meet expected levels to improve this. This has been summarised in 
the notes column of the appendix.  
 

6. It is worth noting that performance on three indicators has improved from 
Amber to Green. These are schools rated outstanding by OFSTED (indicator 
4.4), young people not in employment, education or training (indicator 4.5) 
and breastfeeding (indicator 9.2). 
 

7. It is also worth noting that performance on two indicators has dropped from 
Green to Amber. These relate to mental health service users in employment 
(indicator 5.2) and carers breaks (indicator 7.10). 
 

Action Planning 
 

8. Each of the priorities and measures in the Joint Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy has a clear owner, an organisation or partnership that is responsible 
for reporting progress.  
 

9. However, it is important to capture the wide range of activity happening 
across the county that contributes to each of them. The workshops are 

Agenda Item 7

Page 9



HWB7 

 
 

proving to be important in understanding the work of partner organisations, 
how this contributes to meeting the priorities and measures in the strategy, 
and the opportunities they present for further joint working.  
 

10. The Children and Young People’s Board has hosted three workshops this 
year, focused on key priorities within the strategy: mental health transitions, 
children’s safeguarding and raising achievement. 
 

11. The Adult Health and Social Care Board has hosted workshops on Frail Older 
People and the older people’s commissioning strategy.  
 

12. The Health Improvement Board has hosted workshops focused on housing 
and action planning. 
 

13. There was also a workshop focused on prevention hosted jointly by the Adults 
and Health Improvement Boards. 
 

14. Further workshops over the coming months will focus on carers, learning 
disability and obesity. 

 
 
 
Ben Threadgold, Strategy Manager, Joint Commissioning, Tel: (01865) 328219 
  
February 2012 
 
  

Page 10



Updated : Wednesday 27th February 2013 
No. Indicator Q1 report 

Apr-Jun 
R 
A 
G 

Q2 report 
Jul-Sept 

R 
A 
G 

Q3 report 
Oct-Dec 

R 
A 
G 

Q4 report 
Jan-Mar 

R 
A 
G 

Notes 

 

 
 

Oxfordshire Health and Wellbeing Board 
Performance Report 

 
No. Indicator Q1 report 

Apr-Jun 
 Q2 report 

Jul-Sept 
 Q3 report 

Oct-Dec 
 Q4 report 

Jan-Mar 
 Notes 

 Priority 1:    All children have a healthy start in life and stay healthy into adulthood 
 

1.1 Reduce emergency admissions to 
hospital for episodes of self-harm 
by 5% year on year.  This means 
reducing admissions by 8 young 
people in 2012/13 (currently 155) 
 
 

Expected 
 

37 
admissions 

G 

Expected 
 

74 
admissions 

G 

Expected 
 

111 
admissions 

G 

Expected 
 

148 
admissions 

  

Actual  
 
36 

admissions 
 

Actual 
 
66 

admissions 

Actual  
 
96  

admissions 

Actual 

1.2 Reduce emergency admissions to 
hospital with infections by 10% 
year on year.  This means 
reducing emergency admissions 
by 145 in 2012/13  
 
 

Expected 
 

417 
admissions 

 
 

 
 
 
R 

Expected 
 

834 
admissions 

 
 

 
 
 
R 

Expected 
 

1251 
admissions 

 

 
 
 
R 

Expected 
 

1668 
admissions 
 

 This is a challenging target set against a 
national trend of increased admissions, 
but is part of the NHS outcomes 
framework.  
  
The original baseline for 2011/12 has 
been increased from 1450 to 1853, 
meaning the quarterly targets and 
overall reduction have also been 
amended 
  
 

Actual  
 

413 
admissions 
 

Actual  
 

805 
admissions 

Actual  
 

1986 
admissions 

Actual  

1.3 Review and redesign transition 
services for young people with 
mental health problems.  This 
would mean there would be a new 
service in place from 1st April 
2013 

 
 
 
 
 

 

     Expected 
 

New service 
to be in place 

 A project group led by the Director of 
Children Education and Families has 
been established to take this forward, 
following a successful workshop held by 
the Children and Young People’s Board  

 

P
age 11



Updated : Wednesday 27th February 2013 
No. Indicator Q1 report 

Apr-Jun 
R 
A 
G 

Q2 report 
Jul-Sept 

R 
A 
G 

Q3 report 
Oct-Dec 

R 
A 
G 

Q4 report 
Jan-Mar 

R 
A 
G 

Notes 

 

 
 

 Priority 2: Narrowing the gap for our most disadvantaged and vulnerable groups 
 

2.1 Maintain the recently improved 
rate of teenage conceptions 
(currently at 22 women aged 15-
17 per 1000 - in 2010 this was 
251 conceptions)  

 

Expected 
 

62 
 G 

Expected 
 

125 

G 

Expected 
 

187 

G 

Expected 
 

251 

 2011 Calendar Year (Q3). Latest data 
July-Sept 2011. Revised data published 
Dec 2012 

Actual  
 
62 
 

Actual  
 

123 

Actual  
 

182 

Actual  

2.2 The ‘Thriving Families’ project will 
have begun work with the first 100 
families by April 2013 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

     Expected 
 

100 families 

 512 families have been identified who 
meet the criteria and of these 262 
currently have a worker. 
Team started working with families from 
January 2013 and will be working with 
100 families by end of March. 

Actual 
 
 

2.3 Reduce persistent absence (15% 
lost school days or more) from 
school for children looked after to 
4.9% for 2011/12 academic year 
(currently 11.7%) 
 

 
 
 
 

 Expected 
 

4.9% 
 R 

     This figure is for those children 
continually looked after for at least 12 
months as of 31 March 2012.  

Actual  
 

7.7% 
 

 Priority 3: Keeping all children and young people safer 
 

3.1 Collect information to establish a 
baseline of prevalence and trends 
of child sexual exploitation in 
Oxfordshire by March 2013 

 

      Expected 
 

Baseline 
established 
and targets 

set 

 This work is being undertaken by the 
Child Sexual Exploitation sub group of 
the Safeguarding Children’s Board. 
Although the national data collection 
model has not been confirmed, it is likely 
to be based on the University of 
Bedfordshire model. A local data 
collection model based on this, including 
some local indicators, has been set up 
and is being tested. It will then be 
applied to all known cases by end 

 

P
age 12



Updated : Wednesday 27th February 2013 
No. Indicator Q1 report 

Apr-Jun 
R 
A 
G 

Q2 report 
Jul-Sept 

R 
A 
G 

Q3 report 
Oct-Dec 

R 
A 
G 

Q4 report 
Jan-Mar 

R 
A 
G 

Notes 

 

 
 

March. A baseline and target will be 
established as a result and reported to 
the next meeting of the Board. 

3.2 Reduce the number of children 
who need a subsequent Child 
Protection Plan (following a 
previous completed plan) to no 
more than 15%, which will require 
full multi-agency commitment (in 
2011/12 15.3%) 
 

Expected 
 

15% rolling 
year  

15% year to 
date 

 

G 

Expected 
 

15% rolling 
year  

15% year to 
date 

 

G 

Expected 
 

15% rolling 
year  

15% year to 
date 

 

G 

Expected 
 

15% rolling 
year 

15% year to 
date 

 

 The measure is the proportion of 
children who became subject to a child 
protection plan who had previously been 
subject to a plan (the national definition 
is within 2 years, this report is all 
children) 
 
 
 
 

Actual  
 

11.5% 
rolling year 
2.6% year to 

date 
 

Actual 
 

10.3% 
rolling year 
(44/429) 

10.2% year 
to date 
(22/216) 

 

Actual  
 

12.3%  
rolling year 
(55/446) 

13.2% year  
to date 
(44/333) 

 

Actual  

3.3 A regular pattern of quality 
assurance audits is undertaken 
and reviewed through the 
Oxfordshire’s Safeguarding 
Children Board covering the 
following agencies: children’s 
social care; youth offending 
service; education services; 
children and adult health services; 
early intervention services; 
services provided by the police.  
Over 50% of these audits will 
show a positive overall impact 
(baseline to be confirmed in 
2012/13) 
 

       Expected 
 

Programme 
of audits in 
place and 
baseline 

established 

 The Quality Assurance and Audit sub-
group of OSCB have set up a working 
group to develop this measure fully, to 
report by March 2013. An update is also 
being provided on the agenda for CYPB 
meeting on 25th Feb. 

Actual 

 
 

P
age 13



Updated : Wednesday 27th February 2013 
No. Indicator Q1 report 

Apr-Jun 
R 
A 
G 

Q2 report 
Jul-Sept 

R 
A 
G 

Q3 report 
Oct-Dec 

R 
A 
G 

Q4 report 
Jan-Mar 

R 
A 
G 

Notes 

 

 
 

 Priority 4: Raising achievement for all children and young people 
 

4.1 76% (5,000) children achieve 
Level 2b or above in reading at 
the end of Key Stage 1 of the 
academic year 2011/12 (currently 
74.3% for the academic year 
2010/11) 

  Expected 
 

76% 

 
 
G 

    Performance is now above national 
average (76%). Oxfordshire still ranks 
below its statistical neighbour average 

Actual  
 

78% 
4.2 80% (4,880) of children achieve 

Level 4 or above in English and 
Maths at the end of Key Stage 2 
of the academic year 2011/12 
(currently 75% for the academic 
year 2010/11)  

  Expected 
 

80% 

 
 

G 

    Oxfordshire now performs above 
national average (80%) and above the 
statistical neighbour average (81%). 
Only 1 primary school is below floor 
standard compared with 18 in 2011. 

Actual  
 

82% 
4.3 59% (3,500 out of 6,000) of young 

people achieve 5 GCSEs at A*-C 
including English and Maths at 
the end of the academic year 
2011/12 (currently 57.4% for the 
academic year 2010/11) 

  Expected 
 

59% 

 
 
 
 
R 

    In the key performance measure of 
pupils achieving 5+A*-C inc English and 
maths Oxfordshire has increased slightly 
to 57.9%.  However, in this measure 
Oxfordshire is performing below the 
Statistical Neighbour and National 
averages and is ranked 8th out of 
Statistical Neighbours 

Actual 
 

57.9% 

4.4 66% (153) primary schools and 
70% (24) secondary schools will 
be judged by Ofsted to be good or 
outstanding in 2012/13 (currently 
61% (142) of primary schools and 
65% (21) of secondary schools) 

Expected 
 

62% 
(Primary) 
66% 
(Secondary) 
 A 

Expected 
 

63% 
(Primary) 

67% 
(Secondary) 

A 

Expected 
 

64%  
(Primary) 

68% 
(Secondary) 

G 

Expected 
 

66% 
(Primary) 

70% 
(Secondary) 

 The proportion of both primary and 
secondary schools judged as Good or 
Outstanding continues to rise. Between 
Sep and Dec, 11 schools (41% of those 
inspected) had increased their 
judgement to this level. End of January 
figures show that this has increased 
further to 16 schools. 
 

Actual  
 

60% primary 
65% 

secondary 
 

Actual  
 

62% primary 
65% 

secondary 
 

Actual  
 

65% primary 
 

71% 
secondary 

 

Actual  

P
age 14



Updated : Wednesday 27th February 2013 
No. Indicator Q1 report 

Apr-Jun 
R 
A 
G 

Q2 report 
Jul-Sept 

R 
A 
G 

Q3 report 
Oct-Dec 

R 
A 
G 

Q4 report 
Jan-Mar 

R 
A 
G 

Notes 

 

 
 

4.5 Reduce the number of young 
people not in education, 
employment or training to 5% or 
864 young people (currently 5.7% 
in the financial year 2012/13) 

Expected 
 

5.6% 

G 

Expected 
 

8.3%  
(NB figures 
always peak 

in 
September) A 

Expected 
 

6.6% 

G 

Expected 
 

5.0% 

 The proportion of young people that are 
not in education, employment or training 
continues to reduce from the seasonally 
high figure reported in September. This 
reduction is due to confirmation from 
schools and colleges about the activity 
of young people post-16.  The 
proportion of “Not Knowns” remains 
high.  Measures are in place to address 
this such as the recruitment of a casual 
tracking team and the commissioning of 
Welfare Call to provide an intensive 
follow up service 

Actual  
 

5.2% 

Actual 
 

8.4% 

Actual  
 

6.1% 

Actual  

 Priority 5:     Living and working well: Adults with long-term conditions, physical disabilities, learning disabilities or mental 
health problems living independently and achieving their full potential 
 

5.1 75% of working age adults who 
use adult social care say that they 
find information very or fairly easy 
to find (currently 72.4%) 

 

      Expected 
 

75% 

 This target and baseline was set using 
the 2012 annual survey, so we will 
report on the 2013 survey – results will 
be available by May with benchmarking 
information in August. 

 
Actual 

 

5.2 15% of adults on the care 
programme approach receiving 
secondary mental health services 
will be in paid employment at the 
time of their most recent 
assessment / review (currently 
10.7%)  
 

Expected 
11.8% 

 
 A 

Expected 
12.9% 

G 

Expected 
13.9% 

A 

Expected 
15% 

 The wording of this indicator has been 
changed slightly to more accurately  
reflect the targeted individuals, although 
the baseline and targets remain the 
same  Actual  

 
11% 

 

Actual  
 

13.4% 
 

Actual 
 

13.6% 

Actual  

5.3 86% of people with a long-term 
condition feel supported to 
manage their condition (currently 
84%) 

 
 

     Expected 
 

86% 
 

 This target and baseline was set using 
the 2012 annual survey, so we will 
report on the 2013 survey – results will 
be available by May with benchmarking 

P
age 15



Updated : Wednesday 27th February 2013 
No. Indicator Q1 report 

Apr-Jun 
R 
A 
G 

Q2 report 
Jul-Sept 

R 
A 
G 

Q3 report 
Oct-Dec 

R 
A 
G 

Q4 report 
Jan-Mar 

R 
A 
G 

Notes 

 

 
 

Actual  
 
 

 

information in August. 
 

5.4 95% of people living with severe 
mental illness will have an annual 
physical health check by their GP 
(currently 93.7%)  
 

      Expected 
 

95% 

 This indicator is no longer part of the 
national outcomes framework, however 
it remains a priority locally and will be 
reported on an annual basis 

 
Actual  

5.5 50% of people with learning 
disabilities will have an annual 
physical health check by their GP 
(currently 45%) 
 

      Expected 
 

50% 

 The data for this indicator is only 
collected at the end of the financial year 
and so will be available after end March.  
 
 

Actual  

 Priority 6:  Support older people to live independently with dignity whilst reducing the need for care and support 
 

6.1 A reduction in delayed transfers of 
care so that Oxfordshire’s 
performance is out of the bottom 
quarter (current ranking is 
151/151) 
 

Expected 
 

146 
 

R 

Expected 
 

103 

R 

Expected 
 

72 

R 

Expected 
 

72 

 Note – figures are actual number of 
people delayed.  
 
Although Oxfordshire remains in the 
bottom quartile nationally, the number of 
people delayed has reduced. The 
introduction of ‘discharge to assess’ 
(assessing people’s ongoing care needs 
at home rather than in hospital)  in 
November should also have a positive 
impact, although increased demand due 
to winter pressures may also impact on 
the number of delays. 
 

Actual  
 

151 
 

Actual  
 

144 

Actual  
 

104 

Actual  

6.2 No more than 400 older people 
per year to be permanently 
admitted to a care home from 
October 2012 (currently 546) 
 

 
 
  

  Expected 
 

150 G 

Expected 
 

300 

 It is anticipated that a higher number will 
be placed in Q3 and Q4 due to winter 
pressures – the expected figures have 
been amended to reflect this. 
 
Of the total figure, 64 were placed from 

Actual  
 

136 

Actual  

P
age 16



Updated : Wednesday 27th February 2013 
No. Indicator Q1 report 

Apr-Jun 
R 
A 
G 

Q2 report 
Jul-Sept 

R 
A 
G 

Q3 report 
Oct-Dec 

R 
A 
G 

Q4 report 
Jan-Mar 

R 
A 
G 

Notes 

 

 
 

hospital, 9 from Intermediate Care Beds, 
63 from the community 

6.3 50% of the expected population 
with dementia will have a 
recorded diagnosis (currently 
37.8%) 
 

 
 

 Expected 
 

43.9% 
 

 
 
 
G 

Expected 
 

46.95% 

 
 
 
G 

Expected 
 

50% 

 Data being collected from Q2 due to 
changes in collection methods 
 

Actual  
 

46.7%  
 

Actual 
 

47.4% 

Actual  

6.4 3,140 people will receive a 
reablement service (currently 
1,812) 
 

Expected 
 

654 
 
 R 

Expected 
 

1526 

R 

Expected 
 

2420 

R 

Expected 
 

3140 

 The introduction of a new contract for 
reablement in November 2012 has not 
yet lead to the intended increase in the 
number of people receiving a service. 
 
 Actual  

 
492  

 
 

Actual 
 

1020  

Actual 
 

1566  

Actual  

6.5 Maintain the current high standard 
of supporting people at home with 
dignity as measured by people 
themselves (currently 91.6%). 
 

      Expected 
 

91.6% 

 This target and baseline was set using 
the 2012 annual survey, so we will 
report on the 2013 survey – results will 
be available by May with benchmarking 
information in August. 

 
Actual 

 
 

6.6 By the end of March 2013, 
commission an additional 130 
Extra Care Housing places, 
bringing the total to 407 and by 

  Expected 
 

130 
 

 
 
G 

    
 
 

Target for this year has been achieved – 
40 new ECH places have opened at 
Thame, 70 at Banbury (Stanbridge) and 
20 at Bicester. 

P
age 17



Updated : Wednesday 27th February 2013 
No. Indicator Q1 report 

Apr-Jun 
R 
A 
G 

Q2 report 
Jul-Sept 

R 
A 
G 

Q3 report 
Oct-Dec 

R 
A 
G 

Q4 report 
Jan-Mar 

R 
A 
G 

Notes 

 

 
 

the end of March 2015 an 
additional 523 places, bringing the 
total number of places to 930 

Actual 
 

130 

 
 

 

6.7 75% of older people who use 
adult social care say that they find 
information very or fairly easy to 
find (currently 73.8%) 
 
 
 

      Expected 
 

75% 

 This target and baseline was set using 
the 2012 annual survey, so we will 
report on the 2013 survey – results will 
be available by May with benchmarking 
information in August. 

 
Actual 

 
 

6.8 Review transport in the 
community to understand the best 
way of meeting community needs 
by June 2013 
 
 
 

      Expected 
 

Review 
complete and 
action plan in 

place 

 A programme has been established and 
is on track to complete this review by 
June 2013. 

Actual  
 
 

 Priority 7:   Working together to improve quality and value for money in the Health and Social Care System 
 

7.1 Deliver a joint single point of 
access to health and social care 
community services, provided by 
Oxford Health and Oxfordshire 
County Council by the 1st 
December 2012 
 

    Expected 
 

Single point of 
access in 

place 

 
 
 
 
 
 
G 

  The single point of access has staff co-
located at Abingdon Community 
Hospital adopting a multi-agency/multi-
professional approach towards ensuring 
the delivery of seamless integrated care. 
 
During December the newly integrated 
Single Point of Access handled 654 
referrals, supporting 56 avoided acute 
hospital admissions. It also supported 
the new Oxfordshire discharge to 
assess policy – by brokering the process 

Actual 
 

An integrated 
health and 
social care 

Single Point of 

P
age 18



Updated : Wednesday 27th February 2013 
No. Indicator Q1 report 

Apr-Jun 
R 
A 
G 

Q2 report 
Jul-Sept 

R 
A 
G 

Q3 report 
Oct-Dec 

R 
A 
G 

Q4 report 
Jan-Mar 

R 
A 
G 

Notes 

 

 
 

Access has 
been 

established 
and 

operational 
since the 3rd 
December 

2012 
 

for discharge from hospital and 
participating in the newly established 
‘Discharge Pathway Teams’ at both the 
John Radcliffe and the Horton Hospital.    
 

7.2 Deliver fully functioning, locality 
based and integrated health and 
social care services by March 
2013 
 

      Expected 
 

Integrated 
health and 
social care 
services 

operational in 
localities 

 OHFT and OCC have been working in 
partnership to deliver integrated 
community services throughout 2012/13 
with significant progress being made 
with the development of the integrated 
Single Point of Access and the 
implementation of the Oxfordshire 
Discharge to Assess Policy.  
 
A detailed plan for fully integrated health 
(community and older adult’s mental 
health) and social care services has 
been jointly developed by Oxford Health 
Foundation Trust and Oxfordshire 
County Council and will be fully 
implemented during 2013/14 
 

Actual 
 
 

7.3 A single Section 75 agreement to 
cover all the pooled budget 
arrangements by April 2013 
 

      Expected 
 

Single 
section 75 

agreement in 
place 

 A joint County Council and Clinical 
Commissioning Group working group 
has been set up to oversee this work, 
and is on track to deliver by end March 
2013 

Actual 

P
age 19



Updated : Wednesday 27th February 2013 
No. Indicator Q1 report 

Apr-Jun 
R 
A 
G 

Q2 report 
Jul-Sept 

R 
A 
G 

Q3 report 
Oct-Dec 

R 
A 
G 

Q4 report 
Jan-Mar 

R 
A 
G 

Notes 

 

 
 

7.4 A joint older people’s 
commissioning strategy covering 
both health and social care by 
April 2013  
 

      Expected 
 

Joint strategy 
agreed and 

delivery 
plans in 
place 

 The draft strategy has been developed 
by a multi-agency working group, and 
consultation took place between Dec –
Feb. The strategy has now been 
amended to reflect the outcomes of 
consultation, and work to develop action 
plans will be completed by June 2013. 

Actual 

7.5 Oxfordshire's Clinical 
Commissioning Group will be 
authorised by April 2013 
 

      Expected 
 

CCG to be 
authorised 

 Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning 
Group has been formally authorised to 
take on commissioning responsibilities 
for Oxfordshire from 1 April 2013. There 
are five areas to address before the end 
of March 2013: 
• two relating to the constitution which 

was reviewed in January to reflect 
necessary changes, and  

• three relating to the clear and 
credible plan. OCCG will update its 
Operational and Quality, Innovation, 
Productivity and Prevention (QIPP) 
Plan which includes developing 
further the financial plans for 
2013/14, 2014/15 and 2015/16. 
OCCG will continue to monitor 
delivery of the current plan and 
mitigation where plans are not on 
course. It is anticipated that sign off 
of 2013/14 plans by the NHS 
Commissioning Board will confirm 
that these criteria have been met. 

Actual 
 
 

P
age 20



Updated : Wednesday 27th February 2013 
No. Indicator Q1 report 

Apr-Jun 
R 
A 
G 

Q2 report 
Jul-Sept 

R 
A 
G 

Q3 report 
Oct-Dec 

R 
A 
G 

Q4 report 
Jan-Mar 

R 
A 
G 

Notes 

 

 
 

7.6 More than 60% of people who use 
social care services in 
Oxfordshire will say they are very 
satisfied with their care and 
support (currently 59.4%) 
 

      Expected 
 

60% 

 This target and baseline was set using 
the 2012 annual survey, so we will 
report on the 2013 survey – results will 
be available by May with benchmarking 
information in August. 

Actual 

7.7 Achieve above the national 
average of people satisfied with 
their experience of hospital care 
(when the nationally sourced 
information for Oxfordshire is 
available) 
 

    Expected 
 

Above national 
average  

 
England 

2011/12 = 
75.6% 

 

 
 
 
 
G 

   Published as NHS National Outcomes 
Framework 4b. Since it is for experience 
of hospital care the data is given for 
individual hospitals, performance is then 
averaged to give an overall figure. 
NOC and OUHT were separate in 
2011/12 and so they are reported 
individually. The values are reported as 
values out of 100. 
OUHT 75.1/100 
NOC 82.3 / 100 
Oxford Mental Health Trust is not 
included. 

Actual  
 

78.7%  
 

7.8 Achieve above the national 
average of people ‘very satisfied’ 
with their experience of their GP 
surgery (when the nationally 
sourced information for 
Oxfordshire is available). 

 

      Expected 
 

Above 
national 
average  

 Data for this indicator comes from the 
GP Patient Survey. 2011/12 data for the 
survey was collected in two waves. 
(NHS National Outcomes indicator 4a) 

 
1st wave published (July-Sept) – 
88.28% 
2nd wave to be published March 2013 

Actual  
 
 

7.9 Establish a baseline for 
measuring carer satisfaction of 
services by May 2013 
 

      Expected 
 

Baseline 
established 
and targets 

set 

 A survey is taking place in November to 
establish current performance, the 
outcomes of which will be used to 
identify priorities and targets. 
Comparative data with other areas 
expected to be available in early 

P
age 21



Updated : Wednesday 27th February 2013 
No. Indicator Q1 report 

Apr-Jun 
R 
A 
G 

Q2 report 
Jul-Sept 

R 
A 
G 

Q3 report 
Oct-Dec 

R 
A 
G 

Q4 report 
Jan-Mar 

R 
A 
G 

Notes 

 

 
 

Actual 2013/14 

7.10 800 carers’ breaks jointly funded 
and accessed via GPs  
 

Expected 
 

200 
 G 

Expected 
 

400 

G 

Expected 
 

600 

A 

Expected 
 

800 

 Achieved Q1 and Q2 targets 

Actual 
 

213 
 

Actual  
 

427 

Actual  
 

594 

Actual  

 Priority 8:  Preventing early death and improving quality of life in later years 
 

8.1 100 smoking quitters above the 
national target (the nationally set 
target for Oxfordshire is 3,576) 
 

Expected 
 

840 

G 

Expected 
 

1617 

G 

Expected 
 

2490 

 Expected 
 

       3676 
 
 

 Target has been amended slightly to 
reflect higher national target for 
Oxfordshire. 
 
Achieved Q2 target  

Actual 
 

852 
 

Actual  
 

 1668  

Actual Actual 

8.2 2,000 adults receiving bowel 
screening for the first time 
(meeting the challenging 
national target of 60% of 60-69 
year olds every 2 years) 

 

Expected 
 

500 
 R 

Expected 
 

1000 

 Expected 
 

1500 

 Expected 
 

2000 

 Not achieved Q1 target as number of 
people invited fluctuates quarterly.  
Plans are in place to ensure the annual 
target is met 

Actual 
 

406 
 

Actual Actual Actual 

8.3 30,000 people invited for Health 
Checks for the first time (currently 
25,000) 

Expected 
 

7500 
 G 

Expected 
 

15000 
G 

Expected 
 

22500 
G 

Expected 
 

30000 

  

Actual 
 

8848  

Actual 
 

20707 

Actual 
 

27658 

Actual 

P
age 22



Updated : Wednesday 27th February 2013 
No. Indicator Q1 report 

Apr-Jun 
R 
A 
G 

Q2 report 
Jul-Sept 

R 
A 
G 

Q3 report 
Oct-Dec 

R 
A 
G 

Q4 report 
Jan-Mar 

R 
A 
G 

Notes 

 

 
 

 

Priority 9: Preventing chronic disease through tackling obesity 
 

9.1 Ensure that the obesity level in 
Year 6 children is held at no more 
than 15% (in 2011 this was 
14.9%) 

 

    Expected 
 

14.9% or less 
 R 

   
Provisional data expected end of Q3 
and final in Q4 

Actual  
 

15.6% 
 

9.2 60% of babies are breastfed at 6-
8 weeks of age (currently 58.4%) 
 

Expected 
 

60% 
 A 

Expected 
 

60% 

A 

Expected 
 

60% 

G 

Expected 
 

60% 

  
 
 

Actual  
 

59.8% 
 

Actual  
 

59.3% 

Actual  
 

60.3% 

Actual  

9.3 5,000 additional physically active 
adults (Data available twice per 
year) 
 
Baseline:        125,500 Adults 
Annual target:130,500 Adults 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 Expected 
 

128,000 
Adults 

G 

  Expected 
 

130,500 
Adults 

 Numbers fluctuate as Active People 
Survey is based on a sample of 
approximately 2,500 people  

 
 
 
 
 

Actual 
 

136,000 
Adults 

 Actual  

Priority 10: Tackling the broader determinants of health through better housing and preventing homelessness 
 

10.1 A reduction in the number of 
households at risk of fuel poverty 
through use of improvement 

      Expected 
 

Basket of 
relevant 

indicators to 

 The HIB has established a working 
group to develop appropriate indicators 
and targets  

P
age 23



Updated : Wednesday 27th February 2013 
No. Indicator Q1 report 

Apr-Jun 
R 
A 
G 

Q2 report 
Jul-Sept 

R 
A 
G 

Q3 report 
Oct-Dec 

R 
A 
G 

Q4 report 
Jan-Mar 

R 
A 
G 

Notes 

 

 
 

grants and enforcement activity 

 

be agreed to 
enable 

monitoring 
and setting of 

outcomes 
Actual 

10.2 Action to prevent homelessness 
and ensure a joint approach in 
times of change. 

 

 

      Expected 
 

Review in the 
light of 

information 
on best 
practice 

 

 Report on proactive work in all districts 
and pilot work on direct payments in the 
City is being considered at the next 
meeting of the Health Improvement 
Board  

Actual 

10.3 New arrangements for partnership 
work to ensure vulnerable people 
are supported to remain in 
appropriate accommodation e.g. 
young people, victims of domestic 
violence, offenders and other 
adults with complex needs. 

      Expected 
 

New 
partnership 

arrangements 
to be in place 

 New Terms of Reference for the 
Supporting People Core Strategy Group 
are being agreed  

Actual 

Priority 11: Preventing infectious disease through immunisation 
 

11.1 8,000 children immunised at 12 
months, maintaining the high 
coverage (this means we will 
meet the challenging national 

Expected 
 

2000 
 

G 

Expected 
 

4000 G 

Expected 
 

6000 G 

Expected 
 

8000 

 Achieved Q3 (cumulative) target 

P
age 24



Updated : Wednesday 27th February 2013 
No. Indicator Q1 report 

Apr-Jun 
R 
A 
G 

Q2 report 
Jul-Sept 

R 
A 
G 

Q3 report 
Oct-Dec 

R 
A 
G 

Q4 report 
Jan-Mar 

R 
A 
G 

Notes 

 

 
 

target of 96.5%) 
 

Actual 
 

2038 
 

Actual 
 

4074 

Actual 
 

6055 

Actual 

11.2 7,700 children vaccinated against 
Measles Mumps and Rubella 

(MMR) by age 2  
 

Expected 
 

1925 
A 

Expected 
 

3850 
G 

Expected 
 

5775 
G 

Expected 
 

7700 

 Achieved Q3 (cumulative) target 

Actual 
 

1883 

Actual 
 

3955 
 

Actual 
 

6038 

Actual 
 
 

11.3 7,300 children receiving MMR 
booster by age 5 (meeting the 

ambitious national target of 95%) 
 

Expected 
 

1825 
 G 

Expected 
 

3650 

G 

Expected 
 

5475 

G 

Expected 
 

7300 

 Achieved Q3 (cumulative) target 

Actual 
 

1857 
 

Actual 
 

3775 

Actual 
 

5684 

Actual 

11.4 3,000 girls receiving Human 
Papilloma Virus vaccination to 

protect them from cervical cancer 
(meeting the national target of 
90% of 12-13 year old girls) 

 

    Expected 
 

3000 
 G 

Expected 
 

3000 

 3 doses required to achieve target - final 
data as at 08/10/2012 
 
Dose 1 = 3259 
Dose 2 = 3238 
Dose 3 = 3189  
 

Actual 
 

3189 
 

Actual 

11.5 80,000 flu vaccinations for people 
aged 65 or more (meeting the 

national target of 75% of people 
aged 65+) 

      Expected 
 

80,000 
 

 Data expected in Q4 

Actual 
 
 

 

P
age 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Chaired by Robert Francis QC 

 

  1 

 

Robert Francis QC 

Press Statement 

Today I publish the report of this Inquiry following my consideration of the 
evidence of over 250 witnesses and over a million pages of documentary 
material.  It builds on my earlier report, published in February 2010 after the 
earlier independent inquiry on the failings in the Mid Staffordshire NHS 
Foundation Trust between 2005 and 2009. I recommend  that those seeking a 
full understanding of all the issues read both reports. 

This is a story of appalling and unnecessary suffering of hundreds of people.
They were failed by a system which ignored the warning signs and put 
corporate self interest and cost control ahead of patients and their safety.  I 
have today made 290 recommendations designed to change this culture and 
make sure that patients come first. 

We need a patient centred culture, no tolerance of non compliance with 
fundamental standards, openness and transparency, candour to patients, 
strong cultural leadership and caring, compassionate nursing, and useful and 
accurate information about services. 

The evidence at both inquiries disclosed that patients were let down by the 
Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust. There was a lack of care, 
compassion, humanity and leadership. The most basic standards of care were 
not observed, and fundamental rights to dignity were not respected. Elderly 
and vulnerable patients were left unwashed, unfed and without fluids. They 
were deprived of dignity and respect. Some patients had to relieve 
themselves in their beds when they offered no help to get to the bathroom.
Some were left in excrement stained sheets and beds. They had to endure 
filthy conditions in their wards. There were incidents of callous treatment by 
ward staff. Patients who could not eat or drink without help did not receive it.
Medicines were prescribed but not given. The accident and emergency 
department as well as some wards had insufficient staff to deliver safe and 
effective care. Patients were discharged without proper regard for their 
welfare.

The many experiences like this were truly shocking to hear. Many will find it 
difficult to believe that all this could occur in an NHS hospital. I want to pay 
tribute to the many patients and those close to them who bravely and with 

Agenda Item 8

Page 27



 
Chaired by Robert Francis QC 

 

  2 

great dignity gave evidence to me at the two inquiries. It is their efforts which 
have brought these shocking facts to light.  It is important for them, and all 
others who have suffered as they have that the necessary changes are made 
to protect patients and to provide the proper and fundamental standards of 
care to which we are all entitled. 

What brought about this awful state of affairs? The Trust Board was weak. It 
did not listen sufficiently to its patients and staff or ensure the correction of 
deficiencies brought to the Trust’s attention. It did not tackle the tolerance of 
poor standards and the disengagement of senior clinical staff from managerial 
and leadership responsibilities. These failures were in part due to a focus on 
reaching targets, achieving financial balance and seeking foundation trust 
status at the cost of delivering acceptable standards of care. 

The purpose of this inquiry was to work out why these problems many of 
which should have been evident over a period of years, were not discovered 
earlier. Regrettably there was a failure of the NHS system at every level to 
detect and take the action patients and the public were entitled to expect.  

  The patient voice was not heard or listened to, either by the Trust 
Board or local organisations which were meant to represent their 
interests. Complaints were made but often nothing effective was done 
about them.

  The local medical community did not raise concerns until it was too 
late.

  Local scrutiny groups were not equipped to understand or represent 
patient concerns or to challenge reassuring statements issued by the 
Trust.

  The Primary Care Trusts which were under a duty to arrange for the 
provision of safe and effective care were not set up for and did not 
effectively ensure the quality of the health services they were buying;
they did not have the tools to do the job properly 

  The Strategic Health Authority was the regional representatives of the 
NHS and the Department of Health. It did not put patient safety and 
wellbeing at the forefront of its work. It defended trusts rather than 
holding them to account on behalf of patients. It was uncritical in its 
support of Foundation trust status for the Trust. It preferred to explain 

Page 28



 
Chaired by Robert Francis QC 

 

  3 

away concerns such as those about high mortality rates rather than 
root out matters which would concern any patient. 

  Monitor’s duty was to ensure that trusts were fit to be granted the 
independence of Foundation Trust status. It focussed on corporate 
governance and financial control without properly considering whether 
there were issues of patient safety and poor care. 

  The Department of Health did not ensure that ministers were given the 
full picture when advising that the Trust’s application for Foundation 
Trust status should be supported. It was remote from the reality of the 
service at the front line.

  The Healthcare Commission was required to assess trusts against 
standards which did not adequately test the quality of care being 
provided to patients, but it was its painstaking investigation by a team 
of skilled inspectors that eventually brought the truth to light. Even then 
there was a reluctance by those who had the power to do so to 
intervene urgently to protect patients. 

  Other organisations, including healthcare professional regulators, 
training and professional representative organisations failed to uncover 
the lack of professionalism and take action to protect patients. 

At every level there was a failure to communicate known concerns adequately 
to others, and to take sufficient action to protect patients’ safety and wellbeing 
from the risks arising from those concerns. In short the trust that the public 
should be able to place in the NHS was betrayed. 

What caused such a widespread failure of the system? This is not something 
which can be blamed simplistically on one policy or another, or on failings on 
the part of one or even a group of individuals. There was an institutional 
culture in which the business of the system was put ahead of the priority that 
should have been given to the protection of patients and the maintenance of 
public trust in the service. It was a culture which too often did not consider 
properly the impact on patients of actions being taken, and the implications for 
patients of concerns that were raised. It was a culture which trumpeted 
successes and said little about failings. Standards and methods of ensuring 
compliance were not focussed on the effect of service deficiencies on patients  
There was a tolerance of poor standards and the consequent risk to patients.
Agencies frequently failed to share their knowledge with each other. 

Page 29



 
Chaired by Robert Francis QC 

 

  4 

Assumptions were continually made that important functions were being 
performed satisfactorily by others. The dangers of the loss of corporate 
memory from major reorganisations were inadequately addressed and during 
the reorganisation of PCTs and SHAs there was a loss of focus upon the care 
patients received. 

The NHS is full of dedicated, skilled people committed to providing the best 
possible care to their patients. There is much to be proud of about what they 
do for us. However the service so valued in this country and respected 
internationally is in danger of losing public trust unless all who work in it take 
personal and collective responsibility to root out poor practice wherever it is to 
be found.

What do we need?

Conventionally, some might say depressingly, when a disaster has occurred 
in the NHS the usual approach has been to blame and sack individuals or to 
propose major reorganisations. What has been found to be wrong here 
cannot be cured by finding scapegoats, and/ or recommending major 
reorganisations yet again 

What is required now is a real change in culture, a refocusing and 
recommitment of all who work in the NHS – from top to bottom of the system - 
on putting the patient first. We need a common patient centred culture which 
produces at the very least the fundamental standards of care to which we are 
all entitled, at the same time as celebrating and supporting the provision of 
excellence in healthcare.

We need common values, shared by all, putting patients and their safety first; 
we need, a commitment by all to serve and protect patients and to support 
each other in that endeavour, and to make sure that the many committed and 
caring professionals in the NHS are empowered to root out any poor practice 
around them. These values need to be the principal message of the NHS 
constitution, to which all staff must commit themselves. 

How is this to be done?

The NHS is a complex and frequently re-organised system trying to maintain 
its service against a backdrop of increasing demands and challenging 
financial expectations. The last thing required is a set of proposals from me 
requiring more radical reorganisation. So my recommendations are intended 
above all to support all in the service to make patient centred values and 

Page 30



 
Chaired by Robert Francis QC 

 

  5 

standards real, but also to bring teeth to the task of changing behaviours 
where required. Essentially I think five things are needed: 

  First, a structure of clearly understood fundamental standards and 
measures of compliance, accepted and embraced by the public and 
healthcare professionals,  with rigorous and clear means of
enforcement:  we need a list of standards,  about patient safety, the 
effectiveness of treatment, and basic care - the requirements we will all 
agree should be in place  to permit any hospital service to  continue. 
These standards should be defined by what patients and the public 
want and are entitled to, and what healthcare professionals agree can 
be delivered. Non compliance with these fundamental standards
cannot be tolerated. Any organisation unable consistently to comply 
should be prevented from continuing a service which exposes patients 
to risk. To cause death or serious harm to a patient by non-compliance 
with fundamental standards should be a criminal offence. Standard 
procedures, guidance and assessment tools designed to enable 
organisations and individuals to comply with fundamental standards in 
different clinical settings should be produced by the National Institute of 
Clinical Excellence (NICE), with the help of relevant professional and 
patient  organisations. These should include guidance on staffing.  
Individuals should be supported to report non compliance or matters 
which might prevent compliance to their organisations.  They should be 
protected when they do this. 

Fundamental standards must be policed by the Care Quality 
Commission. It is this inquiry’s firm conclusion that physical inspection 
by well qualified, trained and experienced hospital inspectors is the 
most effective means of monitoring compliance with standards in 
hospitals.  Regulation would also be more effective if compliance with 
fundamental standards and requirements for clinical and corporate 
governance and finance control, were regulated by one organisation.  
The CQC should regulate all these matters together rather than 
responsibility being divided between CQC and Monitor. The CQC 
would also be expected to intervene where necessary to protect 
patients from non-compliance with the fundamental standards. 

Page 31



 
Chaired by Robert Francis QC 

 

  6 

In all walks of life the buyer wants to ensure that he gets what he pays 
for.  Health should be no different. Therefore commissioners of 
healthcare services must be required to develop and require 
compliance with other standards – which I have called enhanced 
quality standards - of quality, effectiveness and other requirements 
over and above the fundamental standards.  As the buyer of these 
services on our behalf commissioners must ensure that these 
enhanced standards are delivered by their providers. In this way the 
role of the regulator and commissioners responsibility would be 
simplified and clarified.  

  Secondly, openness, transparency and candour throughout the 
system: A common culture of serving and protecting patients and of 
rooting out poor practice will not spread throughout the system without 
insisting on openness, transparency and candour everywhere in it. A 
duty of candour should be imposed and underpinned by Statute and 
the deliberate obstruction of this duty should be made a criminal 
offence.

o Openness  means enabling concerns and complaints to be 
raised freely and fearlessly, and questions to be answered fully 
and truthfully; 

o Transparency means making accurate and useful information 
about performance and outcomes available to staff, patients, the 
public and regulators. 

o Candour means informing  any patient who has or may have 
been avoidably harmed by a healthcare service of that fact and 
a remedy offered where appropriate, regardless of whether a 
complaint has been made or a question asked about it. 

Every provider trust must be under an obligation to tell the truth to any 
patient who has or may have been harmed by their care. It is not in my 
view sufficient to support this need by a contractual duty in 
commissioning arrangements. It requires a duty to patients, recognised 
in statute, to be truthful to them.  It requires staff to be obliged by 
statute  to make their employers aware of incidents in which harm has 
or may have been caused to patients so they can take the necessary 
action.  The deliberate obstruction of the performance of these duties 
and the deliberate deception of patients in this regard should be 
criminal offences. So called “gagging clauses” which might prevent a 
concerned employee or ex employee raising honestly held concerns 

Page 32



 
Chaired by Robert Francis QC 

 

  7 

about patient safety should be banned. Trusts must be open and 
honest with regulators. It should be an offence deliberately to give them 
misleading information. Information provided to the public about 
performance should be required to be balanced, truthful and not 
misleading by omission.  Quality accounts should be independently 
audited. The CQC should be responsible for policing these obligations. 

  Thirdly, improved support for compassionate caring and committed 
nursing: proper standards of nursing care lie at the heart of what is 
required to protect patients when in hospital. The majority of nurses are 
compassionate, caring and committed. They should be given effective 
support and recognition, and be empowered to use these qualities to 
maintain standards. Entrants to the profession should be assessed for 
their aptitude to deliver and lead proper care, and their ability to commit 
themselves to the welfare of their patients. Training standards need to 
be created to ensure that qualified nurses are competent to deliver 
compassionate care to a consistent standard and their training must 
incorporate the need to experience hands-on patient care. Named 
clinicians should be responsible for the welfare and care of each 
patient in hospital. 

Healthcare support workers are a highly important but insufficiently 
valued part of the workforce: they provide most of the hands on care 
for elderly and vulnerable patients. They need the help of consistent 
training, and standards of performance. Patients are not currently 
adequately protected from those who are unfit to do this work. The time 
has come in for healthcare support workers to be regulated by a 
registration scheme enabling those who should not be entrusted with 
the care of patients to be prevented from being employed to do so.  
This needs to be supported by common training standards and a code 
of conduct. No-one should have hands-on care of patients unless 
properly trained and registered. Patients and the public are entitled to 
greater clarity about the status of those who provide direct physical 
care to them. 

Nursing needs a stronger voice. This can be achieved by strengthening  
nursing representation in organisational leadership, enhancing the links 
with their professional regulators, better appraisal, and encouraging 
strong nursing leadership at ward level. I would like to see more 
recognition of the extremely important role nursing plays in the care of 

Page 33



 
Chaired by Robert Francis QC 

 

  8 

older patients by the creation of a new registered status as a registered 
older person’s nurse. I would like their profession to consider how 
greater authority can be brought to their representative voice. 

  Fourthly strong and patient centred healthcare leadership: leadership 
generally in the NHS is under challenge and needs more effective 
support.  The necessary culture will only flourish if leaders reinforce it 
every day in every part of the service. A NHS leadership staff college 
could be created, offering all potential and current leaders the chance 
to share in a form of common training designed to equip them to 
exemplify and implement the common culture. They should be 
supported by a common code of ethics and conduct for all leaders and 
senior managers.

The public are entitled to expect leaders to be held to account 
effectively when they have not applied the core values of the 
Constitution, or are otherwise shown to be unfit for the role. Currently 
leaders who are registered as doctors or nurses can be disciplined by a 
regulator for failing to protect patients. Other leaders cannot. A more 
level playing field would enhance leadership teamwork and increase 
the public’s confidence in the NHS. It should be possible to disqualify 
those guilty of serious breach of the code of conduct or otherwise 
found unfit from eligibility for leadership posts. This will require a 
registration scheme and a requirement that only fit and proper persons 
are eligible to be directors of NHS organisations. While this regulatory 
function could be performed by an existing regulator, the need for a 
separate entity for this purpose should be kept under review. 

  Finally, accurate, useful and relevant information: information is the 
lifeblood of an open transparent and candid culture. All professionals, 
individually and collectively, should be obliged to take part in the  
development, use and publication of  more sophisticated 
measurements of the effectiveness of what they do, and of their 
compliance with fundamental standards. Patients, the public, 
employers, commissioners and regulators need access to accurate, 
comparable and timely information. Improvements are needed in the 
core information systems for the collection of data about patients, both 
to support their individual treatment and the accurate collation of 
information for statistical purposes. Difficulties in achieving this are no 

Page 34



 
Chaired by Robert Francis QC 

 

  9 

excuse for inaction. The Information Centre for Health and Social Care 
has an important role to play in this field. Boards must be accountable 
for the presentation to the public of balanced and candid information 
about their trusts’ compliance with fundamental standards.   It should 
be a criminal offence to be a party to a wilful or reckless false 
statement as to compliance with safety or fundamental standards. 

Many of my recommendations will require development in detail to be 
implemented. The suffering undergone by patients and those close to them in 
Stafford demands that the lessons to be learned are not considered for a day 
or two and then forgotten. Government and the Department of Health have an 
important role to play in changing the culture, but this does not mean 
everyone else in the system can sit back and wait to be told what to do.
Every single person and organisation within the NHS, and not only those 
whose actions are described in this report, need to reflect from today on what 
needs to be done differently in future. All have a responsibility to consider 
what is exposed by my two inquiries, and to consider how to apply the lessons 
themselves, individually and collectively. I have recommended that every 
organisation should report publically on a regular basis  on whether they have 
accepted my recommendations and what they are doing to implement them, 
and that the House of Commons Health Select Committee should be invited 
to review regularly the progress being made by organisations which are 
accountable to Parliament. 

My recommendations represent not the end but the beginning of a journey 
towards a healthier culture in the NHS in which good practice in one place is 
not considered to be a reason for ignoring poor practice somewhere else; 
where personal responsibility is not thought to be satisfied by a belief that 
someone else is taking care of it; where protecting and serving patients is the 
conscious purpose of everything everyone thinks about day in day out.  
Patients are entitled to be the first and foremost consideration of the system 
and all those who work in it. I very much hope that this report and its 
recommendations will help to bring this about. 

6 February 2013 

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



HWB8 

Shadow Oxfordshire Health and Wellbeing Board – 14 March 
2013 

 
Briefing Document for Themed Discussion 

 
Considering the implications for Oxfordshire of the Francis 
Report on the Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust Public 

Enquiry 
 

Current Clinical Assurance available in Oxfordshire 
 
1. Introduction 
 
The first Francis report on the Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust was 
published in 2010. It identified extremely poor care being delivered in a number of 
areas of the trust. The second report was published in February 2013. This report 
goes further and looks at the wider responsibility of the NHS. The report makes 
290 recommendations. The Department of Health’s response to this report is 
currently being prepared.  
 
This paper sets out the systems and processes in place in Oxfordshire with which 
the commissioners monitor and manage the quality of provider services. 
Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (OCCG) is building on the systems 
developed by NHS Oxfordshire (the PCT). 
 
There are three aspects of clinical quality; clinical effectiveness, patient safety 
and patient experience. Commissioners collect data and intelligence on each of 
these areas. The types of intelligence and the methods used are detailed below.  
 
The primary responsibility for quality sits with service providers. OCCG has a duty 
to act with a view to securing continuous improvements in the quality of services 
for patients and in outcomes; with particular regard to clinical effectiveness, safety 
and patient experience. OCCG also has a statutory duty to assist and support the 
NHS Commissioning Board in securing continuous improvement in the quality of 
primary medical services. 
 
Providing assurance of the quality of services is complex and no system is 
infallible. Systems are evolving all the time and information becomes more 
sophisticated. The uncovering of poor quality within NHS commissioned services 
frequently leads to increased scrutiny and changes in the way in which we seek 
to understand the quality of services.  
 
It is the role of Boards to seek assurance on quality. As far as possible the 
systems we use provide this assurance. However, it is important always to be 
alert to the possibility of poor quality. The acknowledgement that things can and 
do go wrong is essential and constant vigilance is required. 
 
 
 

Page 37



HWB8 

2. Clinical effectiveness 
 
In seeking to establish quality there is clearly a desire to look at things which can 
be measured. This is a relatively new science and methods are constantly 
changing and being updated.  
 
 
2.1 Dr Foster, HSMR and SHMI 
 
Oxfordshire commissioners have, since 2008, used Dr Foster software to monitor 
clinical outcomes at Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust (OUH) (previously 
Oxford Radcliffe Hospitals). The clinical outcomes measured by this software are 
mortality, readmissions, length of stay and day case rates. Using an algorithm, 
the software determines whether the expected numbers of negative outcomes 
(e.g. for mortality, this would be death) are exceeded by the monitored number. 
When any of these outcomes is statistically significantly higher than expected, Dr 
Foster will produce a ‘red bell’. The OUH has regular monthly meetings to discuss 
red bell alerts which a member of the OCCG Quality team attends. 
 
In some areas commissioners rely on the providers’ use of Dr. Foster. In 
Oxfordshire the commissioners have their own Dr. Foster package. This makes 
the system more robust in that it allows for direct scrutiny of local data. 
 
Dr Foster measures the Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio (HSMR). The 
HSMR is an indicator of healthcare quality that measures whether the death rate 
at a given hospital is higher or lower than would be expected. HSMR is one of the 
range of indicators regularly reviewed by OCCG when assessing the quality of 
the clinical services. The OUH has had higher than expected mortality. However, 
this difference is within the range of normal variation and is not therefore 
considered to be statistically significant. This means that the hospital has not 
been mentioned as a hospital with a high mortality rate in the Dr Foster Hospital 
Guide. The Department of Health has recently introduced an additional mortality 
measure, the Summary Hospital-level Mortality Indicator (SHMI). This measure 
also indicates that the OUH has a mortality rate within expected limits.  
 
NHS Oxfordshire and now Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (OCCG) 
attends meetings with OUH at which mortality alerts and all red alerts are 
discussed. Commissioners continue to work with the OUH to improve the HSMR. 
The OUH and OCCG’s ambition is to have one of the lowest mortality ratios in the 
country.  
 
2.2 Audits  
 
Clinical audit is a quality improvement process. It seeks to improve patient care 
and outcomes through systematic review of care against explicit criteria and the 
subsequent implementation of change. In Oxfordshire, clinical audits are 
requested from providers via the contract to assure commissioners that National 
Institute for Clinical Excellence (NICE) guidance is followed. Performance in 
clinical audits is reviewed by the Quality Team of OCCG and the evidence from 
these reports is triangulated with other information collected.  

Page 38



HWB8 

3. Patient safety 
 
There are established systems for reporting and reviewing patient safety 
incidents. All providers manage incidents internally. There is a nationally 
designated list of Serious Incident Requiring Investigation (SIRIs). These 
incidents must be reported to the commissioner. The provider must then conduct 
a root cause analysis. The commissioner manages the investigation process and 
incidents are only ‘closed’ when commissioners are satisfied that incidents have 
been thoroughly addressed, that lessons have been learnt and that steps have 
been taken to prevent recurrence.  
 
Where themes emerge in the investigation of serious incidents providers are 
required to understand these and to demonstrate that they are being addressed.  
 
Issues about the culture of organisations often emerge in the analysis of SIRIs, as 
well as in the response of trusts to the events. In these circumstances the 
commissioners may require action to be taken to address these issues, for 
example, through increased clinical leadership.  
 
We can begin to understand the safety culture of a trust by looking at how they 
respond to incidents. The ideal culture is one in which staff feel able to voice their 
concerns, and where patients are always listened to and their concerns attended 
to promptly. Trusts should be able to receive information which shows that they 
may have issues with a willingness to understand and investigate further. 
 
3.1. Safeguarding  
 
Commissioners have a statutory safeguarding function. They are notified of 
safeguarding alerts relating to both adults and children and are instrumental in 
responding to alerts. This means that safeguarding information can be viewed 
alongside other quality information to alert areas where poor care may be causing 
harm. 
 
4. Patient Experience 
 
Patient experience is perhaps the fastest growing area of quality information. In 
order to be assured of quality we need to put feedback from patients at the 
centre. Patient experience is a good early indicator of where thing may be going 
wrong.  
 
Patient experience is also the most difficult area to measure. Patient satisfaction 
can be collected through simple scoring - as in the new ‘Friends and Family test’, 
but experience is not measurable. Methods of looking at experience include 
scrutinising complaints, PALs and MPs’ letters. It is not sufficient to simply look at 
the number of complaints. The content of the complaint also needs to be 
understood in order to detect themes and possible trends. We also look at PALs 
queries as these give an indication of areas which patients are finding difficult and 
provides us with an indication of how well providers respond to patients’ 
concerns. Crucially, we look at how trusts use the information they receive in 

Page 39



HWB8 

complaints to inform the way in which they deliver services and to make 
improvements. 
 
There is a close correlation between overall patient experience and the quality of 
nursing care. In both Oxford Health NHS Foundation Trust and Oxford University 
Hospitals NHS Trust the quality of nursing has been a focus for improvement. We 
continue to work with them on developing leadership in this area.  
 
4.1 Patient and Staff Surveys  
 
The views of patients are frequently sought through local and national surveys.  
The national acute inpatient survey is conducted every year and allows 
comparison between trusts and within trusts over time. There are also more 
specific surveys, for example the cancer patient survey and the maternity survey, 
which provide a view of patients’ experiences of individual services. The OUH 
generally scores well in the national inpatient survey. 
It is well known that the well being of staff has a direct impact on the experience 
of patients. For this reason we look at the results of the staff survey in conjunction 
with those of the patient survey.  
 
5. Contracts:  Schedule 3 part 4  
 
Commissioners receive monthly indicators on performance activity and quality. 
This range of indicators is set out in schedule 3 part 4 of the contract held 
between the commissioner and the provider. The contents of this schedule are 
agreed as a part of the contract negotiation. It sets out the quality markers 
expected from providers and includes limits for healthcare acquired infections 
such as MRSA bacteraemias and clostridium.difficile. It includes national targets 
relating to, for example A&E, cancer waits and 18 weeks referral to treatment 
times. It also includes relevant local indicators such as radiology turnaround 
times.  
 
For the main providers schedule 3 part 4 is scrutinised monthly at performance 
meetings. Quality is discussed at the same meeting as activity. In this way it is 
given the same weight as performance and the impact of each on the other can 
be understood.  
 
6. Quality Information system 
 
OCCG uses a risk management software package called Datix. This enables a 
range of quality data to be stored. Datix includes data on complaints, PALs, MP 
letters, and incidents. Importantly Datix permits users to search for data – for 
example to see whether there has been a number of complaints about a 
particular area. 
 
In 2012 the Datix system was expanded to provide GPs with direct access. They 
use this to report to the commissioners directly concerns they have about the 
quality of services. This facility provides the commissioners with a rich source of 
timely information which can be addressed rapidly to ensure quality is improved. 
Since being established in June 2012 we have received well over a thousand 

Page 40



HWB8 

reports through this system, all of which have been or are currently being followed 
up.  
 
7. Whistleblowing 
 
The PCT has, on occasion, received ‘whistle blowing’ allegations. When this has 
happened we always follow up allegations by conducting investigations.  
 
8. Action to address quality concerns 
 
When there are concerns about the quality of services a number of steps are 
taken. The first step would usually be to raise the issue locally, formally at a 
contract meeting.  The provider is then expected to produce a detailed 
rectification plan. If the commissioner receives an inadequate action plan or the 
plan is ineffective then a contract query will be issued. If this approach fails or the 
concerns are significant then the commissioner will issue a performance notice. If 
OCCG believes a service to be dangerous it will suspend the service 
immediately. In parallel to this process provider executive directors and the Chief 
Executive would be informed.  
 
OCCG also has the option of commissioning an external review of quality from 
national experts such as the Royal Colleges. This facility has been used by the 
PCT on a number of occasions to seek additional information and advice on 
issues of concern.  
 
OCCG has a structure which puts quality at the heart of commissioning. It has 
established a formal sub committee of the board to focus on quality and 
performance. The group is chaired by a lay member of the governing board and 
has a lay member in attendance. 
 
The Francis report identifies a number of recommendations for commissioners. 
OCCG will review these and agree a programme of implementation. We look 
forward to the establishment of the local Healthwatch, which will build on the 
achievement of the LINks, to help strengthen the patient perspective. We are 
developing the website to enable direct patient feedback to OCCG. The GP 
feedback (Datix) system is a recommendation which we are already using to 
good effect. 
 
9. Conclusion 
 
Where possible we use validated tools to measure the quality of commissioned 
services. These are not, on their own, sufficient to provide assurance of quality. 
We also use the ‘soft intelligence’ we receive.  Where there have been extreme 
cases of poor quality, culture is usually cited as a cause. While it may not be the 
cause of the poor quality itself, it is a culture of acceptance and of secrecy which 
prevents the issues being tackled.  
 
It is essential that providers are open in their reporting and consideration of 
quality issues. The quality team has built good working relationships with provider 
trusts. This means that we can work together to understand and address potential 

Page 41



HWB8 

quality issues while crucially maintaining the critical distance which scrutiny and 
assurance requires. Importantly, data which suggests poor performance and data 
which indicates good performance should be afforded the same degree of 
scrutiny.  
 
Seeing the organisation or service as a whole is also crucial. Indicators when 
viewed on their own may not be the cause for a high level of concern. When 
viewed in the context of a range of other information a high level of concern may 
be indicated. This whole picture view is achieved through close working within the 
quality team and across the organisation. 
 
This paper sets out the range of tools, methods and intelligence which are 
currently in use in Oxfordshire to provide commissioners with assurance of the 
quality of the services they commission. OCCG has intentionally placed quality at 
the centre of the organisation.  The Quality team work closely with providers and 
have developed a relationship where they are expected to challenge. When 
necessary decisive action is taken to address situations where quality fall below 
the standard we would expect.  
 
 
Sula Wiltshire, Director of Nursing & Quality, Oxfordshire & Buckinghamshire 
PCT Cluster 
 
February 2013 
 

Page 42



HWB9 

Oxfordshire Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board 
14 March 2013 

 
Safeguarding Adults Annual Report 

 
 
 
Donald McPhail, Independent Chairman of the Oxfordshire Safeguarding Adults Board 
will present the 2011-12 annual report of the Adult Safeguarding Board followed by a 
discussion on the recommendations.  
 
The discussion will include the Winterbourne View Oxfordshire Action Plan. The plan 
was developed by Oxfordshire Commissioners when they carried out a review of local 
commissioning arrangements. 
 
Winterbourne review -  next steps for Oxfordshire 
 

• The work to provide the local register of all people with challenging behaviour in 
NHS funded care is in hand.  

• Everyone in inpatient services will receive regular reviews and this information 
will be collated and provided to DH as requested.  

• Oxfordshire already has a joint health and social care commissioning strategy 
for adults with learning disability which reflects the principles of the approach 
set out in the DH report.  

• We propose to look at the strategies for adults and children together, review 
how these reflect the learning from Winterbourne, and identify any gaps which 
need addressing.  

• We plan to consider the specialist health needs of older teenagers and younger 
adults around the time of transition through joint work between children's and 
adults commissioners. 

 
------------------------------------------------- 

Agenda Item 9

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



P a g e  |  0 
 

 

  

-
-  

Safeguarding is everybody’s business… 

Age ncies  wor ki ng to gether  to e nsur e a  coh erent pol icy  a n d a  co ns iste nt  a nd 
ef f ect ive respo nse f or  t he pro tec ti on of  vu lnera bl e  adul ts  a t  r isk of  abus e  

 

Page 45



P a g e  |  1  
 

 

Ka ty W hif e ,  emai l :  O SA B @O xf ordshir e.g ov. uk,  we bs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

 

Everybody’s business... 

 

The O xf ords hire Sa f eguar di ng A dul ts  B oa rd ha s  
ma in ta ined the  supp ort  of  a l l  a genci es  t o stre ngthen wor k 
across the County  t o sa f eguar d a dults  i n t he ir  ow n hom es 
an d in  care s ett i n gs .   The B oa rd is  now wel l  inf or med of  
the exte nt  to whi ch agencies i dent i f y sa f egua rdi n g 
co ncer ns  a nd t he respo nse b y a ge ncies  to t he c oncerns.  

Hav ing es tabl is hed a  strong s tructura l  ba se f or  th e ident i f ica ti on a nd response  to t he  
saf egua rding nee ds  of  vulnera bl e adul ts ,  the B oar d is  now s et to  f oc us  on the q ua l i ty  of  
services  a nd th e prevent io n of  a buse  to vulnera ble a dults  a cross  t he  Cou nty.    W ithi n the 
last  yea r,  t he B oar d ha s es ta bl i shed a  D ig nity  i n Car e  sub- group a nd t his  ha s  prov ide d a  
stron g bas is  f or  enga gi ng wi t h serv ice providers  to f oc us  on  how serv ices  are  pr ov ide d t o 
the most  vul nerable  a dults .  

The B oard re ma ins c ommi tte d t o lea rning f rom local  and na t i ona l  rev ie ws of  serv ices  to 
inf luence  bot h pol i cy  an d pra ct ice i n O xf ords hire ,  a nd the  B oa rd has  c ont i nued to 
devel op l inks wit h  other  a gencies  a nd bodies  to i nform a n d be  informed of  the 
saf egua rding nee ds  of  vulnera bl e adul ts  in t he  Count y.  

Whi le  the B oard pr ov ides l ea ders hip  a nd coor di nat io n,  t he B oard is  c lear  t ha t  i t  i s  the  
co nt i nu i ng co mmi tm ent  of  sta f f  across a l l  a ge nc ies  t ha t ma kes a  di f ference for  t he 
res ide nt s  of  O xf ord shire.  

 

 

 

Donal d  Mc Ph ai l  

Inde pe nde nt  Chair  of  the O xf or ds hire  Sa feguardi n g A dults  B oard 

Page 46



P a g e  |  2  
 

 

Ka ty Whi fe ,  ema i l :  O S AB @O xfordshir e.g ov.uk,  webs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

 

Contents 

I ntroducti on  3  

Summa ry of  B oa rd A cti v i t ies  201 1 -201 2  4  

•  L eaders hip  a nd Stra tegy  5  

•  Experi ences  of  Peo ple  10  

•  Del ivery,  Perf or ma nce & Resources  2 2  

•  Wor ki n g T oget her  2 7  

A ppen dix 1  -  Rol e Descr ipt i on f or  S af eg ua rdi ng Adul ts  B oa rd Member s  2 9  

A ppen dix 2  -  Rol e  Descr i pt i on f or  I ndepende nt  Chair  30 

A ppen dix 3  –  Terms of  R ef erence  3 1  

  

Page 47



P a g e  |  3  
 

 

Ka ty W hif e ,  emai l :  O SA B @O xf ordshir e.g ov. uk,  we bs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

 

Sa f eguardi ng a dults  i s  a bout  he lpi n g people l ive  
f ree from a buse  a nd neglect .  

Abuse  is  a  v io lat i o n of  a n i ndi v i dual ’s  human a n d 
c i v i l  r i ghts  by  a ny ot her pers on or  pers ons (No 
Secrets ,  Depa rtmen t of  Hea lth,  200 0) .   

Anyone ca n be  vu lnera ble  to harm as  a  result  of  a buse  or  neglect  a t  some t i me i n t he ir  
l ives .  Some a dul ts  a re  more a t  r isk  t ha n others .  They inc l ud e a dults  wit h  phys i ca l ,  sensory  
an d menta l  i mpa irment s  an d lear ni ng di sab i l i t ies .  These  ad ults ’  indep endence a nd 
wel lbei ng would be a t r i sk  i f  the y di d not  recei ve  appr opr ia t e heal th  a n d soc ia l  ca re 
supp ort.   

The report ,  A  st ep  i n  t he r i ght  d i r ect i on :  Th e p ol i c i n g of  an t i - soc i a l  be hav i our  ( 20 1 2) ,  
showed t ha t peopl e se l f -def i ni n g a s d isa bled,  or  w ho report  a  lon g-t erm healt h  condit i o n,  
are  f ar  more suscept ib le  to  be ing ha rmed by a nt i - soci a l  beha vi our  (Her Ma jest y 's 
I nspectora te  of  C onstabula r y,  2 01 2).  

Pe ople  wi th mental  hea lt h pr oblems are  rout i nely  s ubjecte d to physi ca l  an d sex ua l  abuse 
or  t hef t  by  their  nei g hbo urs  (Mi n d,  2 00 7) .   

At  least  ha l f  a  mi l l ion ol der  people  ex per ienc i ng some f orm of  a buse  at  a ny  poi nt  in t i me 
(House  of  Co mm ons,  Hea lth  Committ ee,  2005).   

Any perso n a t r i sk  of  a buse  or  ne gle ct  s ho uld  be abl e t o a ccess  t he  support which 
enabl es  t hem to l ive  a  l i f e  f ree f rom vi olence  a nd a bu se.  

The O xf ords hire Sa f eguar di ng A dul ts  B oa rd ha s  a  cr i t ical  ro l e  i n t he  lea dership a nd 
ma na ge me nt of  saf eguar di ng.  I ts  purpos e i s  to  create a  f ramewor k wit hi n  w hic h a l l  
responsi ble  a ge ncies  wor k toge t her  to  ens ure  t here  is  a  cohere nt  pol icy  f or  t he  
prote ct ion of  vulner able a dul ts  a t  r is k o f  abuse  a nd,  a  cons i stent  a nd ef f ect ive  respo nse 
to a ny c i rc ums ta nces  gi v in g ground f or  concer n.  

  

Page 48



P a g e  |  4 
 

 

Ka ty W hif e ,  emai l :  O SA B @O xf ordshir e.g ov. uk,  we bs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

-  
The S tandar ds  f or  A dult  Saf eguar di ng  h ave  been devel ope d in  pa rtners hip by The  L oca l  
Government Associa t ion (LGA) ,  A ssoc iat ion of  D irectors of  Adult  S ocia l  S ervi ces (ADA SS) ,  
the NHS F ederat i o n a nd S oc ia l  Ca re  I nst i tute for  Exce l len ce  (SCI E) .  Th ey are  a  fra mew ork 
f or  go od pra ct ice .  The t hemes i de nt i f ied wit hi n  t hese  sta nda rds  ha ve  been us ed to  repor t 
on the work of  the B oard for  2011 -201 2 .    

Ada pt ed f rom t he S t an dard s of  Adul t  Sa feguar di ng (LGA,  ADA SS,  SCI E,  NHS  Fede ra t ion 
201 2) .    

Experiences of 
people 

This theme looks at 
what difference to 
outcomes for people 
there has been in 
relation to Adult 
Safeguarding and the 
quality of experience 
of people who have 
used the services 
provided

Leadership & 
strategy                 

This theme looks at 
the overall vision for 
Adult Safeguarding 
and the strategy that 
is used to achieve 
that vision.

Delivery, 
performance and 

resources

This theme looks at 
delivery, the 
effectiveness of 
practice and how the 
performance and 
resources are 
managed

Working 
together

This themes looks at 
the role and 
performance of the 
Local Safeguarding 
Board and how all 
partners work 
together to ensure 
high quality services 
and outcomes

Standar ds  of  A dult  Saf eguardi ng 

Page 49



P a g e  |  5  
 

 

Ka ty W hif e ,  emai l :  O SA B @O xf ordshir e.g ov. uk,  we bs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

1.  

This  them e l ooks a t  the  overal l  v i s io n f or  A dult  S af egua rdi ng in  O xf or ds hi re  a nd the 
stra te gy tha t i s  used to  a chi eve  t ha t  v is ion.  

The crea ti on of  a  l oca l  mult i - a ge nc y ma na gemen t commi ttee as  a  means  of  achi evin g 
ef f ect ive inter -a gency w orki n g was  recommended in th e Depa rtmen t of  Hea lth report ,  N o 
Se cret s :  Gui d an ce  on  dev el o pi ng  a nd i mp l em ent i ng  m ult i -a g en cy p ol i c i es  an d p r oc ed ur es  t o 
pr ot e ct  v uln er a bl e  ad ult s  f r om  a bus e  ( 20 00) .  T his  Guida nc e,  i ssue d under Sect i on  7  of  the  

L ocal  Aut hori ty  S oci a l  S erv ices Act  1 970,  requires  local  
a ut hor i t ies  in their  s oc ia l  servi ces f u ncti ons  to pla y  a  
coordi na t i ng ro le  i n the  devel opment of  loca l  pol ic ies  an d 
proce dure s for  the protect ion of  vulner abl e a dul ts  f rom ab use.  
A  mult i -a gency wor king group wa s  establ ished in O xfor ds hir e  in 
2001,  whic h le d t o t he devel opme nt of  t he O x f or d shi r e  C od e s of  
P r act i ce  f or  t h e P r ot ect i on  of  A l l  Vu ln era ble  A d ult s  f r om  A bu se,  

Ex pl o i t at i on  a nd Mi s t r ea t ment  ( 2 002 )  a nd t he developme nt of  the O xfor ds hire Adul t  
Protect ion Commit t ee.  The publ i ca ti on of  Sa f eg ua rd i ng  A d u lt s  –  A  na ti ona l  f r amew or k of  
sta nd ar d s  f or  g ood p ra ct i ce  an d out com es i n  ad ult  prot ect i on  w or k ( A D A SS,  2 0 0 5)  led t he  
committ ee  t o re- eva lua te i ts  exis t i ng t i t l e  a nd terms of  ref erence  an d become t he  O SAB .   

Structure and function 

The a ims of  O SAB  are to  ensure tha t  a l l  inc i de nts  of  suspect ed ha rm,  abuse  or  n egl ec t are 
reported a nd respon ded to pr oport iona tel y t o:  

•  Enabl e pe ople to ma inta i n t he  m aximu m poss ible  lev el  of  ind ependence,  choi ce a nd 
co ntr ol .  

•  Prom ote  the wel lbe i ng,  secur i ty a nd sa f ety  of  vul nerabl e people c on sistent  wi th  hi s  or  
her  r i ghts ,  capa c ity a nd pers onal  re spons ibi l i ty  a nd to prevent  ab use o ccurr i ng 
wherever poss ible .  

•  Ensure  t ha t  people  f ee l  ab le to  complain  withou t  f ear  of  retr ibuti on 
•  Ensure  t ha t  a l l  prof ess ionals  w ho ha ve respons ib i l i t ie s  re lat in g t o sa feguar di ng a dults  

ha ve  t he sk i l l s  a n d k no wle dg e to ca rr y  out th is  f unct ion.  
•  Ensure  t ha t  sa f egua rding a dult s  i s  int eg ral  to the d evelo pment a nd del i very  of  

services  in  O xf ordsh ire.  

Page 50



P a g e  |  6 
 

 

Ka ty W hif e ,  emai l :  O SA B @O xf ordshir e.g ov. uk,  we bs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

Membership 

O ur  O S AB  include s members from a l l  s t atut ory  a genci es  i nc ludi ng O xf ordshire Co unty  
Counci l ,  T ha mes Val l ey  Pol ice ,  Na ti o na l  Hea lth S erv ice  (NHS)  O xf ordshire ,  O xf or d Hea lth 
NHS Founda t ion Trust  an d t he  O xford U ni vers i t y Hospita l s  NH S Trust .  The  O xf o rdshire 
Drug an d Alc ohol  Ac t ion Te am (DAAT) is  a  new m ember of  the B oa rd.   

The O S AB  has  an i nd epe ndent  c ha ir  to e nsur e t hat  a l l  a gen ci es  involv ed ca n b e 
impart ia l ly  chal l eng ed or  supp orted.  

The T erms of  Ref erence (Ap pendi x  3)  out l ine t he  respo ns i bi l i t i es  of  the  mem ber  
orga nisa t io ns  of  t he  O S AB 

Structure 

Fiv e sub grou ps  su pport  the OS A B   

 

1 .  Pol icy  an d Pra ct ice  

To oversee th e dev elopme nt,  impl ement a ti on a nd rev iew of  l ocal  pol ic ies  a nd pr ocedures  
tha t ensure:  the abu se  of  vulnera ble adu lts  i s  ident i f ied where  i t  i s  occurr i ng;  th at  t here 
is  a  c lear  report i ng pa thwa y;  t hat  t her e  i s  a n ef f ecti ve  an d coor di nate d res po nse to 
abuse w here i t  i s  occurr ing;  t ha t  t he needs  a n d wis hes of  t he vul nera ble  ad ult  a re  central  
to t he  a dult  prot ect i on process .  

 

County Council 
Cabinet

Social & Community 
Services Scrutiny 

Committee

Oxfordshire 
Safeguarding 
Adults Board

Policy & 
Practice

Training

Deprivation of 
Liberty 

Safeguards

Dignity in Care

Serious Case 
Review

Page 51



P a g e  |  7  
 

 

Ka ty Whi fe ,  ema i l :  O S AB @O xfordshir e.g ov.uk,  webs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

2 .  Traini ng 

To pr ov i de  a  co mpre he ns ive  mult i -a gency tra i n ing pr ogra mm e to suppor t  s i ngle  a gency 
tra in i ng in t he a rea s  of  prevent io n,  recog nit io n a nd resp ons ivenes s to  ab use a nd neglect .  

3.  Se r ious  Case Re vie w 

To pr ov i de  assura nces  to t he  O SAB  that  the recommendat i ons a nd learni n g f rom a l l  
re leva nt  ser io us  ca se  rev iews (wit h m ul t i -a ge ncy c ha rac ter i st ics)  ha ve  bee n c on sidered,  
a nd t hat  t he  rel eva nt  learni n g a nd reco mmen da ti ons  a re  be ing i mplem ented.  

4.  Dignity  i n Care  

To he lp e ns ure that  everyon e in  O xf ord shire exper iences d ignit y i n t he  ca re a nd support  
the y rece ive ,  an d t o  assi st  O S AB  in  i ts  work.  

5.  De privati on of  Lib erty  Saf eguards  

To ensure t ha t  D e pr i va t i on  of  L i ber t y Saf egu ar ds  a re  ef f ect iv ely  an d la wf ul l y  appl ied 
a cross  O xf ordshire .   

The D ep ri v a t i on of  L i ber t y  Sa f eg ua rd s  ar e part  of  th e Men ta l  Capa ci ty  Act  (20 05) .  They 
a im to  pr otect  pe opl e in  ca re homes a n d h ospi tal s  f rom bei ng inappropr ia te ly depri ved of  
the ir  l iber ty.  S ome people l iv i ng i n  hospitals  a nd ca re  homes ca n't  ma ke the ir  ow n 
deci s i o ns  about  t hei r  trea tme nt  an d/or  c are  beca use they lac k the men tal  capac i t y to  do 
so.  T hey need m ore care  an d pro tect io n tha n others  t o e nsure they don' t  suf f er  ha rm.  
Treat i n g a nd car i n g f or  people wh o n eed extra  pr otect i o n may m ea n restr ict i n g t he ir  
f reedom to t he  poi nt  of  depri v i n g t hem of  the ir  l iber ty .  T he sa f eguar ds  provi de a  legal  
f ramewor k f or  a ut hor is in g a  depr iva t i on of  l ibert y so tha t  t rea tme nt  or  care  ca n be 
prov ided i n a  ca re h ome or  h ospita l  ( t he  Ma nagi ng Aut hor i t y)  f or  people w ho la ck menta l  
capa ci ty .   

Board governance 

The O S AB  wi l l  report  a nnua l l y  to  t he O xf ords hi re  Count y  Co unci l ,  S oc ia l  & Community  
Services  S crut i n y Commi ttee.   

I n addit ion ea ch core/sta tut or y  member  of  the O xf or ds hire Sa feguardi n g A dults  B oa rd is  
expected to report  t o i ts  ow n ma na gement commit tee.  

Page 52



P a g e  |  8 
 

 

Ka ty Whi fe ,  ema i l :  O S AB @O xfordshir e.g ov.uk,  webs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

Board Budget 

The O S AB  i s  pr ima r i ly  f unded by O xf or ds hi re  County  Cou nci l  (Adult  S oci a l  Care)  wit h 
contr ibut ions  f rom O xf ord Hea lth NH S F ounda t io n Trus t and Rid gew a y Part nershi p 
(O xf ordshire L ea rni ng Disab i l i ty)  NH S Trust .   

The D epr ivat io n of  L iberty  S af eg ua rds se rv ice is  f unded j o int ly  by  NHS O xf ordshi re  an d 
O xf ordshire C ount y Coun ci l .   

O ther costs  a n d expenses,  f or  exa mple t ime spent  b y part ne r age ncies  o n B oar d 
a ct iv i t ies ,  f ac i l i ta t i ng sta f f  re lea se f or  tra i ni ng a re  borne by the i n div idual  orga n isat ions.   

Legislation and the national context 

Al l  persons have t he  r igh t  to l ive their  l i ves f ree  f rom vi olen ce  a nd a buse.  This  r i ght  i s  
un derp i nned b y t he dut y o n p ubl i c  a ge ncies  under  the H u ma n Ri ght s A ct  ( 1 9 98)  t o  
intervene proport i o na te ly to  protect  t he  r igh ts  of  c i t i zens.  These r i ghts i nc lude  Art ic le  2 :  
‘ the  Rig ht  t o l i fe ’ ;  Art ic le  3:  ‘F ree dom f rom t ortur e’  ( incl udi n g h umi l ia t i ng and degra ding 
trea tm ent);  a nd Ar t ic le  8 :  ‘R i g ht  t o f a mi ly  l i f e’  (one t ha t  sus tains th e in div idual) .  

N o Se cr et s (D epa r t m ent  of  H ea lt h,  200 0)  i s  the  c ore guida nce  on devel opi ng a n d 
impleme nting m ult i - a ge ncy pol ic ies  a nd procedure s  to pr ote ct  vul nerable a dul ts  f rom 
a buse.  

O ther legis l at ion pa rt icul ar ly  releva nt  t o saf egua r di ng a dul ts  incl udes:  

•  Eq ua l i ty A ct  2 01 0 
•  Menta l  Ca pa ci ty  Ac t  2005  
•  Sa f eguardi ng Vul ner a ble Groups A ct  2006  
•  Menta l  Hea lt h A ct  1 98 3 
•  NHS  Act  200 6 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 53



P a g e  |  9 
 

 

Ka ty Whi fe ,  ema i l :  O S AB @O xfordshir e.g ov.uk,  webs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

National developments this year 

The L aw Commiss ion Pap er  

O n 11  May 201 1  the L a w Commiss ion publ ishe d A d ult  S oc i a l  Ca r e ,  w hich rev iews a d ult  
soc ia l  ca re  la w i n E ngl a nd a n d W ales a nd contai ns  recomme nda t ion s f or  ref orm.   

The Di lnot  C ommiss i on:  Social  care  f un ding  

O n 4 J uly  201 1  t he C ommi ss ion reporte d to Gover nment wi th i ts  f indi ng a nd 
recom me ndat i ons for  a  new f un di ng s ystem.  The report  hi ghl ighte d t ha t  t he current  
f undi ng system is  in  urge nt  need of  ref orm.  

He alth and We l lbei ng B oard 

The J oi nt  Hea lt h a nd Wel lbe i ng B oa r d is  a n importa nt  f ea t ure of  the NH S ref orms an d a re 
key to  pr om oti n g greater  integrat ion of  heal th  a n d loca l  government serv ices .  Work is  
current l y  be i ng complete d in  O xf or ds hire to e nsure th e l oca l  J oint  Hea lt h a nd Wel lbei ng 
B oard pr ior i t ies  a re l i nked wit h the S af e gua r di ng Adul t  B oa rd pr i or i t ies .  

Other developments 

O ver  the  last  year  a  ran ge of  gu i da nce h as  been issued f or  partner s i n saf egua r ding.  T his  
inclu des  gui da nce:  

•  B y ADAS S i n the  f or m of  a n A dvice Note  f or  d i rectors  
•  F rom D epa rtment  of  Health (D H) in re lat ion t o pers ona l isat i on a n d saf egua rdi n g 
•  F or  the NHS in  the  f orm of  a  su ite of  best  pra ct ic e gui des  
•  F rom A ss oc iat i on of  Chi ef  Pol ice O f f icers  ( i n dra f t)  for  t he p ol ice  
•  F rom t he Mini stry of  J usti ce  f or  the  pol i ce  in working wit h v ulnera ble wit nes ses in t he  

cr i minal  just ice  s yst em  
•  F rom D H on commi s sioni n g serv ice s for  wom en a nd chi ldr e n who exper ie nce v io lenc e 

or  a buse  
•  F rom S CI E,  a  numbe r of  gu ide s,  inc luding on t he Governa nce  of  S af egua rdi ng B oa rds ,  a  

Guide to  t he  La w,  I nvolv ing People  a nd S elf -Neglect  ( f unded by  the D epa rtmen t  of  
Health)  

•  Throug h L GA,  o n “ Ma ki ng S af eg ua rding Pers onal”  (part  f u nde d by  DH)  
•  F rom t he C ity of  Lon don Pol i ce  a nd t he Na ti ona l  F raud I ntel l ige nce B urea u on F i na ncia l  

Abuse  
•  F rom A DASS  an d t he  Forced Marr ia ge U n it  on f or ced marr ia ges  a nd people  wit h 

learni n g d isabi l i t ies  
•  F rom t he NHS  Co nf ederat i o n,  L ocal  G overnment Group a nd Age UK,  D el i v er i n g D i gn i t y:  

Secur i ng  di gni ty  i n  c ar e for  ol d er  p eopl e  i n  hos pi ta ls  an d ca re  hom es .   

  

Page 54



P a g e  |  10  
 

2. Experiences of people  
This  t hem e looks  a t  out co mes for  peo pl e  who h ave use d t he  servi ces provi ded an d t he  
qual i ty  of  exper ience  of  people i n rel at i on to A dult  S af egua rding.  

The Oxfordshire population 
O xf ordshire i s  a  predomi na nt ly  rural  co unty  i n which 653, 8 00 people  l ive (201 1  census) .  
I ndee d,  the  coun ty  i s  the  most  rural  in  t he  Sout h East  regi on a nd West  O xf ords hire is  one  
of  the region’ s  lea st  densel y p opulated distr ic ts .  3 7%  of  t he  popula t ion l ive in  s ett lem en ts  
of  l ess  tha n 10, 000 peopl e wit h 6 3%  l iv i ng in ur ban wards  (more t ha n 10 000 res ide nts) .   

The f o l lowing da ta*  gives  a n in dica t ion of  the popul a t ion w ho f a l l  wit hi n saf egua rdi ng 
procedures  based on t he c urrent def in i t ion of  a  ‘vulnera ble  a dult ’ .  

Vulne rable  adults  

The sa feguardi n g pol icy a nd t he 
a ccompa nyi n g proce dures cover  a ny 
perso n,  a ged 1 8 or  over ,  l iv ing or  
receiv ing care or  se rvices  in  O xf ord shir e:  

‘w ho i s  or  m a y b e i n  n ee d of  comm un i t y 
car e  ser vi ce s by  r ea son of  m ent a l  or  ot h er  
di sa bi l i ty ,  a ge  or  i l lness ’  

An d 

‘w ho i s  or  m a y b e u n a ble  t o t a ke  car e of  
h i m or  her se l f ,  or  una ble  t o p r ot ect  hi m  or  
her se l f  a ga i nst  s i gn i f i cant  h ar m  or  
expl oi t at i on. ’  

I n 201 1 / 1 2 ,  a  tota l  of  5 ,355  people  ag ed 
over  65 re ce ive d a  soci a l  care  service 
f unded by  O xf ordshi re Coun ty  Co unci l .  
This  equa tes to  5.0 %  per  cent  of  t he 
popul a t ion of  O xfords hire bei n g a ge d 65  
plus .  

I n 201 1 / 1 2 ,  a  tota l  of  1327 peopl e wit h a  
learni n g d isabi l i t y  ( a ged 1 8- 64)  received a  
soc ia l  ca re  servi ce  f unded by  O xf or ds hi re  
county  c ounci l .  This  equate s to  
a pproxi matel y  0. 33  per  cent  of  t he  
popul a t ion of  O xfords hire aged 1 8- 64 .  

I n 201 1 / 1 2 ,  a  tota l  of  468 me nta l  healt h 
servi ce  users  a ged 1 8- 64  year s  received a  
soc ia l  ca re  serv ice  f unded by  O xf or ds hi re  
Co unty  Co unci l .  T his  equa tes  to 
a pproxi matel y  0. 21 %  per  cen t of  t he  
popul a t ion of  O xfords hire aged 1 8- 64 .  

I n 201 1 / 1 2  a  tota l  of  71 1  people  wit h a  
ph ys ical  d isabi l i ty  (a ge d 1 8- 64)  received a  
soc ia l  ca re  serv ice  f unded by  O xf or ds hi re  
Co unty  Co unci l .  T his  equa tes  to 
a pproxi matel y  0. 1 8  per  ce nt  of  t he 
popul a t ion of  O xfords hire aged 1 8- 64 .

* These f ig ures  excl ude pe ople  w ho wi l l  f und t he ir  ow n ca re  or  rece ive  inf ormal  support 
f rom f ami ly  member s   

  

Page 55



P a g e  |  1 1  
 

 

Ka ty Whi fe ,  ema i l :  O S AB @O xfordshir e.g ov.uk,  webs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

Report on last year’s objectives and priorities 

The 2 01 0- 201 1  O S AB  An nual  Report  out l i ne d s ix  pr iori ty  a rea s  f or  f ocused wor k by the 
O SA B to improve th e out co mes of  servi ce -users .  

1 .  Devel opi ng i mprove d respo nses  f or  vul nerabl e v ict ims of  domesti c  a buse  
2 .  Ta c kl i ng hat e cr ime 
3.  Prom oti ng b ett er  st andards  of  ca re   
4.  Ma king sure  t ha t  people  are  ab le t o ma na ge t heir  o wn ca re  without  r isk of  abuse or  

ne glect  
5.  Ha ving saf e  pla ces f or  peo ple  to go i f  t hey f eel  bul l i ed or  ha rassed 
6.  Wor ki n g to ens ure  t hat  p eople a re trea t ed wi th dig ni ty  a n d respect  w hen they need 

care.  

1. Develop improved responses for vulnerable victims of domestic 
abuse  

Domest ic  a buse a f f ects  1  in  4  wo me n a nd 1  i n 6  me n in  t he ir  l i f et ime.  Those  a ff ecte d 
en dure  r is k t o their  emo tiona l  wel lbei ng,  behav i our,  at ta i nment  a nd l ong-term l i f e  
cha nces.  I nvar ia bl y ,  those i ndi v i dual s  w h o experi enc e domes t ic  abuse ha ve  m yr ia d n eeds,  
wit h ‘a dults  a t  r is k/ vulnera bl e a dul ts ’  m aki ng up  the popula t io n of  peo ple  w ho suf f er  
do mest i c  a buse.    

Domest ic  a buse i s  d ef ined b y t he gover nm ent a s :  

‘A n y i nc i dent  of  th r ea teni n g b eh av i ou r,  v i o len ce or  abu se ( p sy ch ol ogi ca l ,  ph y s i ca l ,  sex ua l ,  
f i na nc i a l  or  em ot i on al)  bet w ee n adu lt s  w ho ar e or  ha ve  be en i n t i ma t e p ar t ners  or  f am i ly  
m em ber s,  r ega r dle ss  of  ge nd er  or  s exu al i t y ’  (Home O f f ice)  

This  inc ludes  issues  of  concer n t o b lac k and mi nor it y  et h nic  communit ies  s uc h a s so  
cal led ' h ono ur  ba sed v iol ence' ,  f emale  ge nital  mut i lat i o n a nd force d marr ia ge.  

I n 2007,  a  preva len ce  stu dy on el der  ab use under ta ke n by t h e Department of  Hea lth a nd 
Co mic  Rel ief  est ima ted tha t  227 ,00 0 ol der  people had been neglec ted or  abus ed in t he ir  
ow n homes in  t he  pr ev ious y ea r  an d t ha t  domest ic  v i olence  a ccoun ted f or  a  s igni f icant  
prop ort ion of  tha t  f igure .  Wome n wi t h d isab i l i t ies  a re part ic ula r ly  vul nerable to  abuse;  
resea rch ha s show n tha t  disa bled wome n exp er ience  abuse a t  lea st twice as  of t en as  no n-
di sa ble d w omen.  Abusers,  inc ludi ng persona l  a ss istants  a nd ca rers,  ma y e xploi t  a  
woma n' s  part i cula r  co ndi t io n or  impair ment.  There are a ddit io na l  ba rr i ers  that  vulnera ble 
a dult s  mus t  over co me,  f or  exam pl e,  a  s ubsta nti a l l y  less  pr o vis ion tha n tha t  avai l able  
prop ort ional l y  to n on- disabl ed wome n is  a ccom pa nied by  a  grea ter  need f or  suc h f ocused 
a nd speci a l is t  servi ces (J ames-Ha nma n,  1 994 ;  Ma gowa n 2 00 3,  2004) .  

Page 56



P a g e  |  12  
 

 

Ka ty W hif e ,  emai l :  O SA B @O xf ordshir e.g ov. uk,  we bs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

An y a dul t  at  r is k of  domest i c  abuse s ho uld  be abl e to a c cess  
supp ort  w hic h e na bl es  them t o l ive a  l i f e  f ree from v iol ence  
a nd a buse .  

T he O xf ords hire  Domest ic  Abuse  Stra te gy Group (O DASG) a nd 
the  O SAB  are  worki n g toget her  to i dent i f y  and promote  best  
pra ct ice i n O xfords hire for  the su pport  of  adults  at  
r isk/vul nerable a dul ts  w ho a re  suf f er in g do mest ic  a nd sexua l  
a buse.  Thi s  work ha s enc om pa ssed resea rch;  da ta a nal ys is ;  an d,  
a  wor ks hop i n  whic h de legates f rom a  range of  agenci es 
ident i f ied gaps a nd barr iers  i n curr en t provi s io n a nd 
hi ghl i ghte d s ome w a ys  to overc ome t hese gaps a nd barr iers .  

 

Recom me ndat i on s  

•  Ensure  t ha t  c lear  protocols  wit h t he  lea d a ut hor i t y a nd part ner  or ga nisa ti ons  a re  in 
pla ce  to i ncl ude  ref erra l  pa th way s,  mon itor i ng a nd review a rran geme nts (L ocal  
Government I mpr ovement a nd Developme nt,  2 01 0) .  

•  I ssues  in re lat i o n to  discr imi nat i on an d l a ck of  u ndersta ndi n g of  t he n ee ds  of  
vu lnera ble  pe opl e i n  accessi ng a nd us i ng  services  for  v ict i ms  of  dom est ic  abuse  need 
to be  a ddr essed.  

•  The needs of  ol der  or  d isabl ed v ic t ims  s ho uld be ta ke n in to a ccoun t  w hen 
devel opi ng/provid i ng inf or mat i on.  

•  Addit ional  vul nera bi l i ty  an d r is k a s  a  resu lt  of  a ge,  i l l ness or  disab i l i ty  ne eds  to be 
taken i nt o a cc ou nt  i n  asses sment .   

•  Access  t o serv ices  f or  v ict ims  of  do mest ic  a buse  who have mobi l i t y  or  support nee ds  
to be  ta ken i nt o account.  

•  I d ent i f i c at i on of  c l ear  pr act ic e  l i nks  be tween  M ul t i - A g e nc y P ub l ic  Pr o te ct i on 
A rr an g em ent s  ( MA PPA),  Mul t i  A ge nc y R isk  Asses smen t  Conf eren ces (MARA C),  
Sa f eguardi ng A dults  a nd Domes ti c  A bus e meet i ngs a nd B oa r ds.  

What  have  we done ? 

•  Shared pa rt- t ime post  between the S af e gua r di ng A dul ts  Tea m an d t he  Sa f er  
Communi t i es  U nit  w orki ng on a l i gni n g A dult  S oc ia l  Care  s erv ices  wit h the domes t ic  
abuse a ge nda  (se co ndmen t co mplet ed) .  Addi t ional  sec ondm ent opport uni ty  wi th  t he  
I ndepe ndent  Dome st ic  V i olence  A dv is or  serv ice  is  be ing co ns idere d by A dul t  S oc ia l  
Ca re.  

•  I mprove d part ners hi ps  l inks  wit h t he  O DAS G.   
•  The Dome st ic  Ab use  Cha mpi on Net wor k has  been further  developed to  inc l ude p eople 

who w ork wit h vul n erable adul ts.  Thi s  n etw ork of  tra ined,  supporte d a nd resourced 

Page 57



P a g e  |  13  
 

 

Ka ty Whi fe ,  ema i l :  O S AB @O xfordshir e.g ov.uk,  webs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

pra ct i t i o ners  across  a  ra nge of  a ge nci es  is  commi tted t o support i ng v ict im s of  
do mest i c  a buse acro ss  O xf ords hire.  At  present  t here  are  approxima tely  600 
Champi o ns  in ar oun d 6 0 orga nisa t i ons,  del iver i ng a  wi de  ra nge of  services .  B r i ngin g 
saf egua rding a dult s  i ssues  t o t hi s  n etw ork ha s  impr oved t he  un dersta ndi ng of  t he  
needs of  vu l nera bl e  people  a n d provi ded a  p latf orm to d isc uss  complex  c ases .  This  
improved i nf orma t ion s ha r i ng and i ncrea sed u ndersta ndi n g helps to  reduce  
di scr imi na t io n w her e i t  ma y exis t .   

•  Resour ces develo ped by  O DAS G and O S AB  have been i mproved to  increa se  t he  
a wa reness  of  the needs  of  vul nerable a dul ts  w ho experi enc e  domest ic  abuse.   

•  Three  Des igna ted M ARAC Of f icers  (DMOs)  tra ined in th e C ounci l ’s  A dul t  S oc ia l  Ca re  
di rect ora t e.  

•  The use  of  the Do mest ic  Abus e,  S ta l k i ng,  Hara ssment (DAS H)  and Honour B ased 
Vi olence  r is k a ssess me nt  bei n g exten ded t hroug hou t  t he County Coun ci l ’s  Adul t  Soc ia l  
Ca re d i rectorate  

•  Domest ic  Homic i de  Rev iew process c l os el y a l ig ned wit h t he  O SAB  Ser ious  Case Revi ew 
prot ocol .  

•  Domest ic  A buse  a n d S af egua rdi ng Adult s  tra ini n g is  more  cl ose ly  a l i gne d.  
•  An act i on pla n is  in  pla ce  an d wi l l  be mo nit ored by t he  O DASG  and t he  O SAB .  

2. Tackling hate crime 

A web-ba se d report i ng an d recor ding sy stem i n k ey  agencie s wa s intr oduced i n  f our  p i lot  
a reas  a cross  O xf or dshire a s  t he f i rst  pa rt  of  the H at e Cr i m e St r at egy  for  t he cou nt y.  Thi s  
wor k ha s  been le d by  t he  O xf ordshire County  Counci l  Com muni ty  Sa f ety Serv i ce .  

I t  wi l l  con tr i bute to  f ul f i l l ing  legis la t ive requireme nts,  under  the  2 01 0 Equa l i ty A ct ,  f or  
publ ic  bodies to  pr ov ide  services  f or  report i ng a nd recordi ng ha te  cr i me inc i de nts  an d 
cr i mes,  ot her tha n to  t he  pol ice .  However ,  th e pol ice a re key  an d suppor t ive pa rtner s .  
The w ork is  c oor di nated by  t he  Mult i  A g enc y Netw or k for  Ta ckl i ng Aggravated 
Ha ra ssmen t.  

The report i ng ,  recor di ng a nd supporti ng syste m wi l l  he lp to i nf orm us  a bou t the 
preva lence,  na ture a nd impac t  of  ha te cr ime in  O xf or dshir e.  I n  pa rt icul ar ,  ha t e cr ime 
motiva ted by  rac e,  re l igio n a nd/ or  be l ief ,  d isabi l i t y,  sexua l  or ienta ti on a nd tra ns -ge nder  
wi l l  be a ddresse d.   

The i mpa ct of  ha te c r ime ca n be severe,  inclu di n g fea r ,  i sola t ion and ph ys ical  a nd me nt al  
ha rm a nd i t  ca n ser i ous l y  af f ect  chi l dren.  U nder- re por t in g i s  a  universa l  i ssu e.  

Page 58



P a g e  |  14  
 

 

Ka ty Whi fe ,  ema i l :  O S AB @O xfordshir e.g ov.uk,  webs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

3. Promote better standards of care  

• Abuse in Domiciliary Care 

Domic i l ia ry care  is  prov ide d t o people who s t i l l  l ive  in their  own ho mes but  need 
a ddit io nal  su ppor t wi th househol d ta sk s,  personal  care  or  a ny ot her ac ti v i ty  t ha t  a l lows 
the m t o  ma i nta i n t h eir  indepen dence a n d qual i ty  of  l i f e.  T he re  a re  approxi ma tel y  1 80 0 
do mic i l i ary ca re pa cka ges  set  up  an d f u nde d by  O xfords hire  Cou nty Coun ci l  an d O xford 
Health NHS F oun da t i on Trus t.   

A  yea r - lon g in qui ry  i nto  t he home ca re  s ystem in  Englan d,  c on ducted by the Equa l i ty  a n d 
Huma n Ri g hts  Comm ission uncovered ev i dence  of  poor  tr ea t me nt  of  ma ny older  people .  
The f inal  report ,  C l ose  t o H om e ( 201 1 ) ,  revea led ' ser i ou s,  sy st em i c  t hr ea t s t o  t he  ba si c  
hu m an r i ght s  of  old e r  peop le wh o a r e get t i ng  hom e car e  s er v i ce s .  I n O xf ords hire ,  just  over  
30% of  co ncer ns  rel a t ing t o t he  abus e,  m istreatm ent or  ne gl ect  of  a  vuln erable a dult  by  a  
pa id work er  re late to  domic i l ia ry ca re  w orker s (exc ludi ng people  wi th a  lea r ni ng 
di sa bi l i ty) .  The Count y C ounci l  ha s w or ked to  mit i ga te  a gai nst such concer ns.  

What  hav e we done ?   

•  Three  f ul l - t im e adult  prot ect i on lea ds  f ocus i ng on abuse in  care have b een recr uited.  
•  B i - mont hl y  r isk a ssessme nt  rep ort s  based on a nalysis  of  adult  prote ct i on a ler ts  an d 

com pla ints  prov i de d by  saf egua r di ng a d ults ’  tea m ma na ger  to O CC contra ct i n g t ea m.  
•  I nte l l ige nce l ea d f ocused invest i ga ti ons  a nd a cti ons  to support  t he  devel opm en t of  

less  wel l  perf ormi n g prov ider  ser vi ces.  
•  Esta bl is hed good j oi nt  w orki ng betw een adult  pr ote ct ion a n d speci a l is t  saf egua rding 

servi ces e . g.  me dic i nes ma na gement.  

Next  Ste ps & Rec om me ndat i ons  

•  A f urther  t hree  f ul l - t i me loc al i ty  a dul t  protec t ion lea ds  t o be  recruite d in  
spr ing/summer 201 2  

•  The C ount y C oun ci l  wi l l  cont i nue  to mai ntai n  a nd improv e t he qual i ty  of  extern al l y  
purcha sed serv ices  

• Abuse in residential care and residential nursing homes 

The negl ect  of  vulne rabl e a dul ts  in  res i dent ia l  car e a nd nurs i ng home s ha s  emer ged as  a n 
impor ta nt  issue nat i onal l y.  ' Th o se a t  gr e at est  r i sk of  a bus e a p pea r  t o be o ld er  w om en ,  
t hose  l i v i ng  i n  a  ca r e  h om e a n d  t hose  w h o ha ve  a  lon g t er m  i l l ness  (pa rti cu lar ly  deme ntia ) . ’  
(B ea dle -B rown et  a l ,  2006).   

Page 59



P a g e  |  15  
 

 

Ka ty W hif e ,  emai l :  O SA B @O xf ordshir e.g ov. uk,  we bs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

Oxfordshire experienceOxfordshire experienceOxfordshire experienceOxfordshire experience    
Sa f eguardi ng a dult  r ef erral s  rece ived b y O xf ords hire  Cou nt y Counci l  a bou t inc ide nts of  
abuse o ccurr i ng in ca re  a nd n urs i ng hom es (excl udi ng peopl e wit h a  l ea rni ng dis ab i l i ty) .   

Fre que ncy of  abuse  

 

Ty pe of  ab use e xper ience d  

 

I t  i s  importa nt  t ha t  the care  nee ds  of  t h e popul a t ion of  O xf ords hire  are pr otect ed.  

What  have  we done ?  

•  Appoi nte d t hre e f u l l - t ime a dult  pr otect i on lea ds  f oc us i ng on a buse  in ca re .  
•  Under tak en bi -m ont hly r is k  asses smen t  reports ,  based on a na lys is  of  a dul t  prot ect ion 

a lerts  a nd complai n ts  provi ded by  t he sa f eguardi ng a dults ’  team ma na ger  t o 
O xf ordshire C ounty  Co unci l  contra ct i n g team.  

•  I ntel l ige nce lea d f ocused investi ga ti ons  and a ct io ns  to support  t he  devel opm en t of  
less  wel l  perf ormi ng  prov ider  ser vices .  

Page 60



P a g e  |  16  
 

 

Ka ty Whi fe ,  ema i l :  O S AB @O xfordshir e.g ov.uk,  webs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

•  Esta bl is hed good j oi nt  w orki ng betw een adult  pr ote ct ion a n d speci a l is t  saf egua rding 
servi ces,  for  exa mpl e  medi c ines  ma na gement a nd t issue v ia bi l i ty .  

•  The O xf ords hire  Ca re  Homes S upp ort  Se rv ice i s  to  support  t he devel opme nt of  nurs i ng 
a nd care  sta ndar ds  in  O xf ords hi re .  

•  L ia ised c los ely  a n d c ommu nicat ed wi t h t he Ca re Q ual i ty  Co mmissi on.  
•  F ocuse d w or k in  rel a t i on to  meet i ng t he  needs  of  repea t  perpetrat ors  w ho are  a lso 

vulnera bl e a dul ts .   

Next  Ste ps & Rec om me ndat i ons  

•  Ex tend f oc us  of  pre vent ing repea t  a buse  by  ot her  vul nera bl e  adult s .  
•  I ncrea se  joi nt  wor ki ng a nd i nf orma t io n sha r i ng bet wee n t he  S af egua rdi ng A dul ts  Tea m 

a nd t he Car e Home Suppor t Serv ice .  

• Safeguarding people with limited or no capacity  

I n O xf ords hi re ,  t he  County  Cou nci l  oper ates a  jo i nt  sup ervi sory  body of f ice f or  
Depr iva t ion of  L iberty  Sa f eguar ds  (DO L S) .  A  superv isor y body is  responsi bl e  f or  
cons ider ing a  d epr iv at io n of  l iberty  request .   A l l  reques ts f or  DO LS  author isat i o ns  are  
received by  t he  DO LS  tea m i n O xfordshi re Coun ty Counci l .   A  team of  4 0 B est  I n terests  
Assessors  (B I A)  com plete  a ssessments  on a  rota  s yst em i n  bot h ca re ho mes a nd ho spital  
sett i ngs.   They are employed by  t he  Cou nt y Cou nci l ,  O xford Hea lth NH S F oun dat ion Trus t 
a nd R idgewa y Pa rt n ership a nd we have representa t ives f rom a l l  4  prof ess ional  a rea s set 
out  i n t he Re gulat i ons -  soci a l  work,  occ upa t iona l  t herapy ,  n ursi ng a nd psyc hology.   

DO L S medica l  a sses sors are empl oyed by  O xf ord Hea lth NHS  Founda t io n Trust ,  O xf ord 
Uni vers i ty  Hos pita ls  NH S Trust  a nd Ridg ewa y Part ner shi p .  

The D OL S ma na ger  s crut i nises  a l l  a ssess me nts  compl eted by  the  ass essors  to ensure  
com pl ia nce wit h legi s la t ion,  sta tut ory gui da nce  a n d case la w,  a nd auth or isat i ons a re 
gra nted by  se nior  of f icers  of  the  Cou nty Counci l  wit h resp ons ibi l i ty  f or  Adul t  Soc ia l  Ca re -  
operat i o ns,  or  seni or  of f icers  of  the Pr i ma ry  Car e Tr ust .   

The D OL S ma na ger  is  a lso a va i lab le to  a dvise hea lt h a nd soc ia l  care prof ess ional s  on 
issues  of  ca pac i ty  a nd best  i nt erest  dec i s ion maki ng.   Gu ida nce is  a va i la ble on t he 
O xf ordshire C ount y Coun ci l  publ ic  w ebs i te and t he  Sa f e f r om  H a r m  webs ite.  

The O S AB  has  recen tl y f ormed a DO LS subgr oup.   The  mem bers  represent  part ner 
a gencies  wi th respons ibi l i t y  f or  DO L S incl udi n g ma na ging a uthor i t ies  (hospital  trusts  a n d 
care homes) ,  t he  su perv isor y bodies ,  a  B I A,  a  medi ca l  asses sor ,  t he  I ndepende nt  Menta l  
Ca pa ci ty  A dvocate  ( I MCA ) service a nd t he Mental  Heal th  trust.   Agencies  a re  s i gnat or ies 
to a  J oi n t  O xf ord sh i r e P ol i cy  on  t h e  M en ta l  C ap ac i t y  A ct  200 5  a nd have a greed to  
standar dise  t he for ma t of  menta l  c apa c i ty  a ssess me nt s  to a ss ist  co ns iste nc y.  

Page 61



P a g e  |  17  
 

 

Ka ty Whi fe ,  ema i l :  O S AB @O xfordshir e.g ov.uk,  webs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

4. Making sure that people are able to manage their own care without 
risk of abuse or neglect  

Increasi n g pe ople' s  choic e and co ntrol  and e ns ur i ng servi c es  are  saf e 

Self -D irected Suppo rt  puts  wha t  is  i mpo rta nt  to th e pers on a t  t he ce ntre of  a l l  dec is i on 
maki ng.  B ased on t he  indiv i dua l ' s  nee ds  whic h have b een ident i f ied i n  t he ir  assessment,  
ea ch perso n is  a l loc ated a  per sonal  budget  t o a rra ng e t heir  supp ort  wit h.  T he  person wi l l  
the n have t he  opt io n of  rece iv i ng a  “dir ect  pa yment” to pur chas e  t he support  t he y need 
or  hav i ng so meone t o ma nag e t hi s  o n t he ir  beha lf  a  ‘ ma nag ed account’ .  

I n i ts  restructur e Oxf ords hire  Count y  Counci l  has  retai ned a  high er  perce ntage o f  socia l  
wor kers tha n ma ny l ocal  auth or i t ies .  S oc ia l  Wor kers  remai n at  t he h eart  of  com pl ex 
soc ia l  ca re  a ssessment s .  Al l  sa feguar di n g wor k is  completed by  a  socia l  wor ker .  

5. Having safe places for people to go if they feel bullied or harassed 

The f i rst  Sa f er  P lac e s  sc hem e was  pi lo ted in Devo n a nd C or nwal l  by  t he  S out h D evon an d 
Da rtmoor Commu nit y  Sa f ety Part nership .  I t  a imed to  sto p t he  bul ly i ng a nd abus e  of  
in div idua l s  wit h lear ni ng d isabi l i t ies  a nd ot her  vul nera ble people .   Several  o ther  L ocal  
Author i t i es  a re n ow operat i ng Saf er  P lac es  sc he mes.  

Drive rs f or  Saf e r  Places  

•  I ncrea se  i n  vu l nera ble  people  l iv i ng i n the c om mu nit y   
•  Encoura gem en t fro m t he gover nm ent f or  communi t i es  an d publ ic  sec tor  t o w or k 

toget her -  t he ' B ig Soc iety' .  
•  Need to  f ind gener i c ,  low- cos t  prevent i on serv ices  f or  vul nerable people  
•  Need to  redu ce  t he percept io n of  cr ime a nd ma ke pe opl e f ee l  saf er  in the ir  com mu nit y  

How a  Saf er  Place s  sc he me  wor ks  

L oca l  s hops,  bus i nesses and a gencies di spla y a  br ight ly  co loured s t icker  to  i de nt i f y tha t  
the y a re part  of  the  sch eme a nd ca n of f er  hel p t o someo ne wh o ma y be  in  distr ess.    

The vul nera ble pers on s i g ne d up t o t he  sch eme carr ies  a  car d d is pla yi n g t he  sam e logo as  
the  st ic ker ,  t he ir  na me an d p hon e numbers  of  someo ne that  the y trust ;  f or  exa mple a  
f ami ly  mem ber or  a  support  w ork er .  

Mem bers  of  staf f  in  the  Sa f er  P lac e  rece i ve tra in i ng ( in- dept h sc he me),  or  t he y have a  
resourc e pac k ( l ight -touch schem e)  a nd wi l l  enabl e t he  vu l nerable  perso n to c onta ct 
someone,  or  ca l l  a ut hori t i es  as  a ppr opr i ate.  

Page 62



P a g e  |  18  
 

 

Ka ty Whi fe ,  ema i l :  O S AB @O xfordshir e.g ov.uk,  webs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

The resp ons ibi l i t y  t o  report  i nc i den ts rema ins  wit h the vul nerable i ndi v id ual  an d not  wi th 
the  Sa f er  P lac es  l oca t ion.   

Saf er  P la ces  are a  pl ace of  temporary  ref uge f rom harassme nt,  b ul ly i ng or  w ors e;  a  Sa f er  
P l aces  shoul d onl y  be  used i f  a  vu lnera bl e  person req uires  h elp in c on ta ct in g a  c arer /  
supp ort  w orker or  s uppor t  agency,  i f  t hey a re lost ,  f eel  d istressed or  hav e been  a  v ict im 
of  some sort  of  ha ra ssment or  cr i mi nal  o f fence.  

Oxf ordshire  Saf er  P laces  sc he me  pr oposal   

•  Devel op a  saf er  p laces  steer i ng group  t o devel op local  re la t i ons hips  
•  B ui ld understa ndi ng i n t he  local i ty  a nd ide nt i f y a nd en ga ge wit h local  bus inesse s 
•  Wor k wi t h O SAB  to  ensure  wor k is  co nnected  
•  Co nnect  wit h local  bus ine sses  
•  I nvolve serv ic e user s,  f a mi l ies  a nd com muni t i es  
•  Pi lot  tw o schemes i n  B anbur y  a nd O xf ord 
•  I nc lude d evelo pment of  Sa fer  Pla ces i n O S AB strateg y 

6. Work to ensure that people are treated with dignity and respect 
when they need care. 

“D i gn i t y  i s  se ei n g m e,  t he  p er son.  R es pe ct i n g a nd  va lui ng me  a s an equal .  Meet i ng my  n eed s  
a nd l i steni n g t o  m e.  H elp i ng  me t o hav e th e l i f e  I  w an t,  wh at ever  my  cha l le nges ”  

Dignit y  in Care  beca me a sub group of  t h e S af egua rding A dul ts  B oard in Ma rc h 2 01 1 .  I n  
this  s hort  t i me the group ha ve ma de gr ea t  str i des  to mee t the f o l l owi ng pr ior i t i es :   

•  F ood,  nutr i t io n a nd hydra t ion appr opr ia te f or  i ndiv iduals  
•  I mprove t he  wa y pe opl e a re  received i nto  hos pi ta l  
•  Co mmuni ca t ions e .g.  dignit y c ha m pions newslet ter ,  di gnit y i n care awar ds  ju dged by 

servi ce  users  a n d ca rers  
•  Perfor ma nce f ramework,  be nc hmarki ng and ke y perf orma n ce indi ca t ors  

A chie ve me nts  

•  Dignif ied gow ns in h ospita l  
•  I nf orma ti on o n spec i f ic  needs of  indiv i dua ls  
•  Service users ,  ca r er s  an d t he  O xf ordshi re L ocal  I nvolveme nt Networ k tra i ned t o  

supp ort  qual i ty  mo nitor i ng of  services  
•  Dignit y  workshops f or  service pr ovi der s  
•  F irst  ‘d i gni ty  i n  ca re ’  a wards  c erem ony 
•  Suppor t to  t he Dignity C ha mpi ons  Netw ork  
•  Perfor ma nce f ramework f or  mea sur i ng dig nit y  

Page 63



P a g e  |  19  
 

 

Ka ty Whi fe ,  ema i l :  O S AB @O xfordshir e.g ov.uk,  webs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

•  Secured se nior  ma nagem en t buy- i n to  progra mme s of  cha n ge across t he lea di ng 
statutor y  sec tor ca r e bodi es  

•  Del ivery of  tra ini ng f or  service provi der s ,  care ma nag ers  a n d staf f .  

Training, development and awareness raising 

The O S CB  has  conducted a  ran ge of  a ct i v i t ies  to:  

1 .  Ensure t ha t  a l l  sta f f  wor kin g wit h a dul ts  a re wel l  t ra ined a nd wor k t o get her  t o protect 
peopl e f rom ha r m.  

2 .  Ensure t ha t  a l l  people  know how to  ra is e co ncer ns  i f  they a re a t  r isk of  or  are  bei ng 
ha rmed i n  some wa y .  

The O S CB  tra ini ng s ubgr oup meet s  quar ter ly  t o review the t ra i ni ng be i ng de l ive red by  
a gencies  a nd to e ns ure i t  meets  t he O SAB  competency f ra mew ork.  Data  is  co l l ected f rom 
a l l  agencies to  meas ure  t he  percen ta ge of  staf f  trained (201 1 -201 2 are f i gures n ot  yet  
a vai lab le) .  S ignif ica nt  devel opme nts  ar e:  

 
•  F ire a nd R escue S er vi ce  ha ve  tra ine d 91%  of  f ront  l i ne of f icers  in  Adult  Sa feguar di ng.  
•  O xf ord Hea lth NHS  F ounda t io n Trust  ha s  com me nced a  pro gramme of  joi nt chi l d  

prote ct io n a nd a dul t  sa f eguar di ng tra i n ing,  resu lt ing in a  m ore cos t  ef f ect ive u se  of  
staf f  t ime.  

•  I ni t i a l  d iscuss ions h ave beg un to  look a t a  jo int  chi l d pr ote ct io n a nd a dul t  
saf egua rding e- l ear ni ng pa c kage f or  use  by  The O xfor ds hir e Saf egua rdi n g Chi l dre ns  
B oard.  

•  A qua rter l y  sta n dar disa t i on meet in g pr ovided b y OS AB  supports  saf egua rdi ng t ra iners 
a cross  O xf ordshire  t o kee p inf or ma t i on and ski l l s  u p to dat e .  Al l  tra ini ng pa cka ges  a re 
mea sure d a ga inst  t he competency f ra mewor k.  The  Developm ent a nd I nf orma ti on 
O ff icer  ha s ca rr ied out  qual i ty  a ssura nce  observa ti ons  of  tr a ini ng,  w here a gen ci es  
ha ve  req uired t his .  

•  F ourteen mult i -a ge ncy tra i ni ng sessi ons  were  de l ivered a cro ss  the  coun ty  wit h o ne 
hu ndre d a nd sevent y f ive attend ees.  Due to  t he  number  of  a tte ndees  a t ea c h sess ion 
the  progra m me wi l l  be reduced for  2012 - 201 3 to  ten sess i ons.  The current  c l ima te  of  
cha n ge i n or gani sat i on s ma y have i mpa c ted o n enga geme nt wit h t he  mul t i -a gen cy 
sessi on.  

•  Co nt i nual  Pr of ess iona l  Development works ho ps  were ru n f or  saf egua rdi n g ma na gers:  
topi cs  were  Dom est i c  Abuse,  F i na ncia l  A buse,  S af egua rdi ng an d t he  L aw,  Menta l  
Ca pa ci ty  a n d S af egua rdi ng.  

Page 64



P a g e  |  2 0 
 

 

Ka ty W hif e ,  emai l :  O SA B @O xf ordshir e.g ov. uk,  we bs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

•  Sa f eguardi ng i nf orm at ion sessi ons  were  del ivered t o  sta f f  in:   O xf ordshi re  D istr i ct  
Counci l  Hous i ng Serv ices ,  O xf ordshire A dvo ca cy S ervi ces  a nd O xf ords hi re  Rura l  
Communi t i es  Counci l .  

•  A Dignit y  in Care  w orks ho p ha s  bee n h el d  wit h ma na gers of  orga nisa ti ons  w ho prov ide  
co ntrac ted serv ice t o O xf ords hi re  Count y  Counci l .    

•  A dedica te d saf egua rdin g tra i n i ng resource f or  profess ional s  i s  avai lab le on t he  Sa f e 
f rom Harm webs ite .   

•  A range of  resour ce s f or  the p ubl ic  a nd prof ess ionals  a re a va i lab le to  dow nl oa d on t he 
Sa f e f rom Ha rm websi te .  

•  The C hal lenge of  Em power i ng Adul ts  a t  R isk wa s a  m ult i -a ge nc y eve nt  t o pro vid e a  
f orum f or  mul t i -a ge nc y n etw or ki ng a nd loo k a t  t he cha l le nges for  prof ess ionals  
involv ed i n sa fegu ar di ng.    
 

Good Pra ct ic e:  Oxf ords hire F ire  and Re s cue Serv ice   

As pa rt  of  t hei r  com mitme nt  to member ship of  t he O SAB  and 
O xf ordshire C hi ldre n’s  S af eg uardi ng B oa rd (O CS B ) ,  Oxf ordshire F i re  
an d Rescue Service i nc luded,  i n t he ir  I nt egrate d Ris k  Ma na gement 
Pla nni ng 201 1 / 1 2  Act ion Pla n,  t he  requir ement  f or  al l  f ront  l ine 
of f icers  to a tte nd sa feguardi n g a dul ts  a nd chi ld pr otect ion tra ini n g.  
Worki ng a l ongsid e t he tra i n i ng lea ds  f or  bot h O S AB  a nd O SCB  a 
tra in i ng pac ka ge wa s  devel ope d to  be del i vered b y t he F i re  a nd 
Rescue Serv ic es  Risk Reduct io n T ea m c oordi na t or  an d Ass i sta nt  Ad mi nistra t ive  Services  
Ma na ger.  The  tra in i ng wa s  de l ivered to  ea ch F i re  Wat ch i n O xf ords hire ,  a  total  of  62 0 
sta f f  ha ve bee n tra i ned t o dat e w hich is  91 %  of  the t otal  number  or i gi nal ly  i den ti f ied.   A  
pla n i s  i n pl ace t o d el i ver  tra ini n g to th e rema inin g s ixty  st af f .   

The tra i ni ng sessi on wa s n ot  of f ic ia l ly  evaluated but  t he tra i ners  be l iev e that  i n  most 
ca ses  i t  was  v iewed posit ivel y  by dele ga tes.  Concerns were ra i sed b y som e of f icers  i n 
rela t ion to  t hei r  sta ndin g i n t he  comm unit ies ,  a s  they both wor k a nd l ive i n  an area.  T he y 
f elt  ra is i ng a  c oncer n f ol lo win g a t tenda nce a t  a n inci dent ma y hav e a  detr i me nt al  ef f ect  
on their  re lat io ns hi ps wit h me mbers  of  the  co mmuni ty,  as  i ndiv i dua ls  would  ea si ly  
ide nt i f y  wh o ha d ra i sed t he concer n.   However  there  is  no ev ide nce t o s ho w t ha t  th is  has  
af f ected a lerts  bei n g ra i sed.   

The tra i ni ng pr ogra mme c omme nce d i n August  2 01 1  and,  a s  ident i f ied ab ove,  t he  f ina l  
sessio ns  are  no w p l an ne d to e ns ure 10 0% compl ian ce.  The f igures  provi ded by F i re  an d 
Rescue Serv ic e ident i f y  tha t  in 2 01 1 ,  e ight sa f eguar di ng c on cerns  were ra ise d b y F i re  and 
Rescue i n re lat io n t o vul nerable a dult s.  From 1 st  Ja nua ry 2 01 2  to 1 3th Ma y 2012  a  total  of  
twe nt y  a lerts  have been ra ised.  W hi lst  no t a l l  twe nty have resu lted in a  saf egua rdi ng 
a lert ,  a l l  co ncer ns  w ere appropr ia tely  ra ised a nd referre d t o  appl icabl e serv ices  wh ere 
necessary .  

Page 65



P a g e  |  21  
 

 

Ka ty Whi fe ,  ema i l :  O S AB @O xfordshir e.g ov.uk,  webs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

I ni t i a l ly  t he  servi ce ha d l i t t le  f eedbac k f ol lowi n g t he ref erra ls ,  but th is  appea rs to  ha ve 
improved.  I t  was  em phas is ed tha t  recei v ing f eedbac k,  whi lst  recogni s i n g t he  need f or  
da ta protecti on,  i s  a  key  f act or  in conf idenc e to ra ise c oncer ns i n t he  f uture .   

This  proje ct  evi dences th e pos i t ive  af f ect  of  sa feguar din g a wa reness tra i ni ng i n  tea ms,  
outsi de of  the s oc ia l  and hea l th  care con text,  who ha ve  c ont a ct  wit h vul nera ble people  
a nd i s  a  model  t ha t  ca n be use d to i nf or m f uture develo pment of  tra in i ng strate gies.    

Future developments: 

•  Co ns i dera t i on needs  to be g iven to how a genci es  are  measur ing t he  ef f ect iveness  of  
tra in i ng.   

•  I ncrea se  t he  avai l ab i l i ty  of  a  gener ic  e- l earni ng pac ka ge f or  the  i ncrea si n g num ber  of  
com mu nit y/ volu ntar y  a gencie s requir i ng sa f eguardi ng a dults  tra ini ng.  

•  Co nt i nu ing Prof ess i onal  Devel opment ( CPD) wor ks hop s pla n ne d f or  201 2 -2013  a re :  
Se l f -  Neglect  ( t his  i s  a  cross  county  even t  wit h B ucki ng ha ms hire  a nd Mi l t on Key nes) ,  
Press ure  Ca re ,  Role of  the Court  of  Pr ot ect ion,  Pers onal isa ti on a nd Sa f eguar di n g.  

•  I n l ine  wi th perso na l isat ion,  t he  B oa rd needs t o  ensure  t ha t serv ice users k no w how t o 
ra i se  co ncer ns.  W or k wit h a gencies  t o develop resources or  adapt  e xist i ng resou rces .   

•  There  is  a  D i gnity  pr oj ect  pr oposa l  to m easure ef f ecti ve nes s  of  D ignit y  wor ks hops  on 
the  qua l i t y  of  care.  

  

Page 66



P a g e  |  2 2  
 

 

Ka ty Whi fe ,  ema i l :  O S AB @O xfordshir e.g ov.uk,  webs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

3. Delivery, performance and resources 
This  t hem e looks  a t  serv ice  de l iver y,  the  ef f ecti veness  of  pra ct ice a nd how t he 
performa nce a nd re sources  of  the  servi ce ,  inc l udi ng i ts  peo ple  are ma na ged.  

Delivery  

Adult  prot ect i o n ref ers  to i nvest i ga ti on a nd interventi on,  where i t  i s  su spec ted tha t  ha r m 
may ha ve  occurre d a s a  resul t  of  abuse or  neglect  of  a  vu l nerabl e perso n or  adult  at  r isk .  

Adult  S oci a l  Car e,  O xf ords hi re  County  Counci l ,  have a n e nha nced duty  t o i nve st i gate  
a dult  prot ecti on ca ses or  to ca use  a n invest iga ti on t o  be  ma de by  ot her  a genci es .  

The O xf ords hire  Cou nt y Cou nci l  S oci a l  a nd Hea lth Care Tea m is  th e conta ct  p oi nt for  a l l  
a dult  sa fe guar di ng a lerts  an d e nquir ies .  I ts  a im is  to resp ond to c ust om er  ne eds quic kl y  
a nd e nsures  tha t  t hey a re di re cte d t o t he p lac e most  appr opri ate to  their  needs.   

A l l  O SAB  member  or ga ni sa t i ons  have s pecia l ist  sa f eguar di ng lea ds  wit hi n their  
orga ni sa ti on wh ose role  is  to devel op a dult  sa fe guar di ng w ithi n  t he ir  or ga nisat ions .  

The S af egua r di ng Adult s  Tea m prov i des  a  dedi ca te d saf egua rdi ng f unct i o n opera ti ng 
in dependentl y  of  pr act i t ioner s but  c ont inui n g to provi de su pport  a nd chal le nge  to a dult  
soc ia l  ca re .  T his  prov ides  se nior  pr of ess ional  lea ders hip wi th a  con t inui ng su pport  a nd 
devel opm ent f unct i on i n re lat i o n to bot h adult  pr ote ct ion l eads  wi thi n  l oca l i t ies  a nd t he 
broa der  sa f eguar di ng inf or mat i on a nd d evelopme nt needs of  adult  soc ia l  ca r e t eams.  

Ca ses  are  ma na ged by a l l  local i t y  tea ms with the saf eguar di n g a dul ts/vul nerable  a dult  
prote ct io n tea m ta ki ng spec i f ic  resp ons ib i l i ty  for  abuse i n  ca re cases .  

The curren t  Sa f egua rdi ng A dult s  Tea m c ons ists  of :  

• 1  f ul l - t i me Unit  Ma n ager  

• 1  pa rt- t i me O SAB  Admini strat or  

• 2  f ul l  t ime Seni or  Pr acti t i oner s  

• 1  f ul l - t i me Sa f eguar di ng A dul ts  B oard Develop me nt a nd I nf ormat i on O f f i cer 

• 1  f ul l - t i me Adult  Pr otect i on Administra tor  

To i ncrea se  t he  tea m’s  capac i ty,  3  a ddi t io nal  f ul l - t ime L oca l i ty  A dult  Pro tec ti on posts a re 
to be esta bl is he d in  201 2.  

Page 67



P a g e  |  2 3  
 

 

Ka ty Whi fe ,  ema i l :  O S AB @O xfordshir e.g ov.uk,  webs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

Systems and referral routes  

While  inf ormat i o n s ha r i ng betw ee n tea ms and a gencies i n O xfords hire has  demonstra ted 
s ignif ica nt  i mprov ement i n re lat io n t o ident i f yi n g r isks  to ‘ adult s  at  r isk ’  some chal le nges  
remai n:  

I nf orma ti on regar di ng r i sk  i n  rela t i on to  pote nt ia l  perpetra t ors  an d ‘a dults  a t  r isk ’  i s  held 
on mult i ple  sys tems,  e.g.  a dult  s oc ia l  ca re,  mental  hea lt h,  le arni ng disabi l i t y,  ch i ldren 
etc .  T he work of  the  B oard ther ef ore  ha s been to ens ure  t ha t des pite  di f f erent  systems,  
informa t ion is  st i l l  shared so t ha t  peopl e  are  sa f eguar ded e f f ecti vel y.     

To  mit iga te  a gai nst the r is ks  of  hav i ng mult ip le  s yst ems,  w ork has  be en co mpl eted to 
improve i nf orma t ion s har i ng a nd access  to syste ms:    

•  A recent  de velopment a l l ows Cou nty Coun ci l  s ta f f  us ing the  chi l dren' s  syste m to  loo k 
up  inf orma ti on hel d  in t he a dul ts  s yst em  (without  ha vi n g to a ccess  t he  a dul ts  sy stem)  

•  There  is  ongoi ng w ork to  i mprov e a cces s  to t he  el ectronic  pat ient  record syste m RiO  
•  O xf ord Hea lth NHS  F ounda t io n Trus t ha s  la unched a  new se rvice,  the S ingle Poi nt of  

Access  (S PA) ,  w hic h provi des  Genera l  Pra ct i t io ner s  a nd ot her  hea lt hcar e prof ess i ona ls  
wit h a  qu ick  a nd eas y  way of  ref err ing p at ients to  t he Tr ust ’ s  communit y h eal th  
servi ces e . g.  comm uni ty  t herapy a nd c ommuni ty  nursin g.  T his  new servi ce  ca n b e used 
f or  a ny ref erral  to c ommu nit y hea l t h serv ices .  

•  Da ta  recor di ng has  been improv ed th oug h t he  prov is ion of  tra in i ng in the use  of  Adult  
Soci a l  Care syst ems,  whi ch ha s been gi ven or  i s  i n t he  pr ocess  of  be ing given t o a l l  
wor ki ng a ge  a nd o lder  a dult  Me ntal  Hea l th Tea ms -  incl udin g saf egua rdi n g rec or di ng 
tra in i ng.   

•  F ina l ly,  O xf or ds hi re  Co unty  Co unci l  ha s  just  pro cure d a  ' S ecure F i le  Shar i ng'  sol ut io n 
tha t  wi l l  ma ke s ha r i ng se ns it ive  a nd restr icted i nfor mat i on outs i de t he  orga nis a ti on 
muc h eas ier  a nd theref ore  wi l l  improve i nf orma ti on s ha r i ng betwee n t he C ounty  
Co unci l  a nd pa rt ner  orga ni sa ti ons.  

Serious Case Review 

There  ha ve bee n n o S er ious C ase Rev iew s co nduct ed i n  O xf ordshire.  However ,  t he  
subgr oup ha s c on ducted Par t nership R evi ews to lear n f rom S er ious I nc iden ts,  s i g ni f icant  
saf egua rding even ts  a nd Ser i ous  Ca se  R eviews i n ot her  regi ons.  

Page 68



P a g e  |  2 4 
 

 

Ka ty Whi fe ,  ema i l :  O S AB @O xfordshir e.g ov.uk,  webs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

Winterbourne View Hospital 

O n 31  May 201 1 ,  th e B B C a i red a  Pa n ora ma progra mme w here pat ie nts  were subjected to  
horr i f i c  trea tme nt  a nd a buse  a t  Wi nt erb our ne Vi ew Hospi ta l ,  B r istol ,  ow ne d a nd run by  
Ca stle beck.  As  a  res ult  of  t h is  severa l  m embers of  sta ff  were a rreste d a nd the h ospital  
ha s  bee n c l ose d do wn.  F ol lowin g t he  broa dcast  sev eral  str an ds  of  review have  been 
carr ied out.  L ocal ly,  a  ser ious  inc ide nt  rev iew and a  review of  com mi ss ioni ng ha ve  bee n 
un derta ken.  T hes e wi l l  be  cons i dered a s  a  part  of  the na t ional  Ser io us  I nc i de nt  rev iew 
a nd review of  c ommiss ioni ng.  Als o be i ng underta ken is :  a  cr imina l  i nvest i gat i on,  a  
Ca stle beck internal  revi ew,  a  G loucestershi re  saf eg ua rding r ev iew a nd a  pr ogra mme of  
CQ C inv est i ga t i ons  a nd ins pect i ons.   

O xf ordshire ha d t hr ee  pa ti ents  a t  Wi nt e rbour ne V iew a nd,  a s  a  resu lt ,  was  requi red t o 
cond uct a n i nves ti gat io n in  l i ne wit h th e S er ious  Inc i de nts Requir ing I nv est i ga t ion (S I RI )  
process  into  t he commissi oni n g a rra ngements  a t  t he t ime of  pla cin g t hese pa t ient s a t  
Wi nter bour ne Vie w.   

The purpose  a n d remit  of  the loca l  i nve st iga t ion was:  

•  To es tabl is h t he  f ac ts  and w het her  t here  were any fa i l ings in t he  c om miss ioni ng 
process  around t he pla ceme nts of  t he  O xf ords hi re  pa t ients ;  

•  To i de nt i f y  a ny l es sons  to be  learned a nd crea te a n a ct io n pl an to  be  impl eme nted to  
preve nt  rec urrence;  

•  The i nvesti gat i o n d i d n ot  i de nt i f y  a ny s er ious  pra ct ice f a i l ings.  I t  di d  ide nt i f y some 
impor ta nt  lear nin g poi nts .  T hese were:  the  ne ed f or  c lar i f ic at io n of  t he pro cess  f or  
out  of  county  p lacements ,  a nd the nee d f or  improvements i n t he  qual i ty  ass ura nce  a n d 
moni tor i ng pr ocess f or  pla ceme nt s.  An a cti on p la n ha s bee n a gr ee d bet ween t he  
Co unty  Co unci l  a nd O xf ords hi re  Pr i mary  Ca re Tr ust wi th t he a im of  i mprovi n g 
com miss ioni ng proc esses.  

I t  i s  l ikely  t ha t  even ts  a t  Wi n terbour ne V iew wi l l  lea d t o a n increa sed a wa reness  a nd 
report i ng of  i ssues  r ela t ing t o saf egua r ding a n d lear ni ng dis ab i l i t ies .  

An act i on pla n ha s  been p ut  i n  pla ce  by  t he  Cou nty Counci l  in  response  t o invest i gat i on 
into  pla ce me nts  a t  Wi nterbour ne V iew.  A steer i ng group involv in g key ma na ger s ,  serv ice  
users  a nd ca rers  has  been es tabl is hed t o  oversee  del ivery of  act ion pla n.  T he Ser ious  
Ca se Revie w subgro up (S CR)  is  mai ntai n ing a n overvi ew of  thi s  w ork to help  ensure  t ha t 
learni n g is  d isse min ated .  

Buckinghamshire Serious Case Review  

The O S AB  mai ntai ned an overvi ew of  a  Bucki nghams hire Ser i ous  Ca se  Review so tha t  
learni n g coul d be di ssemi nated.  

Page 69



P a g e  |  2 5  
 

 

Ka ty Whi fe ,  ema i l :  O S AB @O xfordshir e.g ov.uk,  webs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

Dur ing F ebruary  201 0,  t he  dismembere d body of  7 0 yea r  ol d  Mr  C  wa s  f ound u nder  
concrete in t he  ba ck  ga rden of  h is  home.  I n S epte mber  2 01 0,  Mr  C’s  s on,  who wa s a  22 
year  o l d u ndergra dua te,  was  f ou nd gui l ty  of  his  f ather ’s  murder .  

The T ha mes Val ley  Pol ice  ha d become c oncer ned tha t  bet we en Augus t  2008 a nd Februa ry 
2009,  w hen al l  co nt act  wit h t hi s  o l der  ma n ha d ceased,  ne i ther  t he NHS  nor  A dult  S oc ia l  
Ca re ra ise d concern s about  Mr C w ho w as  a  D irect Pay ment s  Recip ient.  I n the a bsen ce  of  
informa t ion to  t he con tra ry,  bot h A dul t  Soc ia l  Ca re a nd t he support  ag ency commiss ione d 
to sup por t  a l l  D i rect  Pay me nts Rec ipie nt s  be l ieved tha t  Mr  C  employed Personal  
Ass ista nts .  However ,  the pol ice w ere  un abl e to tra ce  t hem.  Al so,  i t  ha s bec ome 
subseq ue nt l y appar ent  t hat  Mr  C’s  s on mi ght  have f a l len wi thi n the s tatu tory  d ef ini t i on 
of  a  carer  but  t here  is  no ev i de nce tha t  he  ha d been rec ogni sed as  su ch by  e i ther  the  NHS 
or  A dul t  S oc ia l  Care .  

A bout  this  Ser ious Case R ev ie w (SCR)  

The review was  co mmissi one d by B ucki ng ha ms hire ’ s  Adul t  S a feguardi n g B oard a nd is  
ba sed o n inf or ma t ion f rom:  

•  B ucking ham s hire County Cou nci l ,  Ad ult  Soci a l  Care  
•  Milt on Key nes Hospi tal  NHS F ounda ti on Trus t  
•  Na ti ona l  Hea lt h S er v ice  B edf ords hire  a n d 
•  O xf ord Ra dcl i f f e  Hospitals  NHS Trust .  

Also,  a  Detecti ve wh o contr i buted t o t he  pol ice  inv est i ga t i on  and mur der tr ia l  s ha red 
insi ghts  f rom bot h procedures .  

I ssues  i de nt if ied  

•  Moni tor i ng of  D irect  Pa ymen ts  
•  Assessm en t  & rev iew proce ss  
•  I mporta nce  of  h isto ry  
•  Hospi ta l  d isc ha r ge a rrangemen ts  
•  Ca rers  Assessments  
•  L ack of  mul t i -a genc y discussio n  
•  Decis ion -ma ki ng not  r isk assesse d  
•  How i s  DNA  da ta  used in  respec t  of  vul nerable a dul ts?  

 

 

 

Page 70



P a g e  |  2 6 
 

 

Ka ty Whi fe ,  ema i l :  O S AB @O xfordshir e.g ov.uk,  webs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

Monitoring and Quality Assurance 

How t he O S CB  has  monit ore d a nd eval uated local  a dult  saf egua rdi ng arra n ge ment s  

The Car e Q ual i ty C ommiss i on ,  Es sen t i a l  St an da rd s f or  Q ua l i t y  an d Saf et y  set  spe ci f ic  
out comes f or  sa feguardi n g a nd sa f et y as  a  requirement  f or  registra t ion.  The Ca re Q ual i ty 
Co mmissi on wi l l  ta k e enf orc ement a cti on w here serv i ces  f a i l  to  co mply wi th sta ndards  
a nd pat ie nt s are put  a t  r i sk .  

I n O xf ords hi re  t he  central  Saf e gua r din g Adult s  tea m provi des  a  dedi cated sa f eg uardi ng 
f unct i on opera t i ng i n depen dentl y of  pra ct i t ioner s  prov i di ng support  a nd c ha l len ge t o 
a dult  s oc ia l  ca re.   

The con ti nue d pr i or i ty of  Adult  Sa f eguar di ng wi t hin A dul t  S oc ia l  Care ,  O xf ordshi re 
Co unty  Co unci l  i s  ref l ected i n t he  201 2-2 01 3 ke y qual i ty mea sures .  

•  Prote ct ion :  To  ensu re tha t  services  t ha t  are  sa f e a nd vu l nerable  peopl e  are  
saf egua rded  

•  Pre vent ion :  To keep people a s  i nd epe ndent  a s p ossi bl e  and l iv ing a n or di nary  l i f e  
•  Pe rsonal isat i on :  T o provid e serv ices  w hi ch m eet  t he persona l  needs of  c l ients  a nd 

maximi se  the co ntrol  the y ca n exerc is e over  t heir  l ive  

The O S AB  provides  cha l len ge a nd supp ort thr oug h scru ti ny  of  performa nce reports,  
inspecti on a nd au dit s .  The B oard reques ts  a ssura nces  t ha t recommen da ti o ns  ha ve  been 
a cted up on.  

I nf orma ti on obtain ed f rom the N H S Sel f - A sse ssm en t  Q ua l i t y  & Per for ma nc e Fr a m ew or k  ha s  
informe d t he  B oa r d.  I t  has  been ide nt i f ied t ha t a  s tan dar di zed a ppr oa ch t o qual i ty 
a ssura nce  wi l l  be benef ic ia l  to  t he B oa rd.  This  i s  a n area of  devel opm ent t o  be ta ke n 
f orward i n n ext year ’s  B us iness Pla n.  

  

Page 71



P a g e  |  27  
 

 

Ka ty Whi fe ,  ema i l :  O S AB @O xfordshir e.g ov.uk,  webs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

4. Working together 
This  t hem e looks  a t  the  r ole  a nd p erf or ma nce of  O SAB  and ho w al l  part ners wo rk 
toget her to  ensure  hi gh q ua l i t y serv ices  an d outco mes 

Governance of Adult Safeguarding (Braye et al, 2011) 

The researc h f or  t he  report  ‘Gover na nc e  of  Adult  Saf eguardi ng’  (B ra ye  et  a l  -201 1 ) ,  
com miss ioned b y th e Depa rtment of  Hea lth,  explor ed t he gover na nce a rra ng em ents  f or  
loca l  saf egua rdi ng adult s .  The f in di ngs focus on f ive key  f ea tures  of  Saf eguar di n g Ad ults  
B oards:  

1 .  Stra te gic  goals  a nd purpo se  

2 .  Struct ures  

3 .  Mem bers hip  

4.  B oard F un ct ions  

5 .  Acco unta bi l i t ies    

The O S AB  completed a  sel f -a ssess ment  exerc ise to  evalua te  i ts  perf orma nce a ga inst  the  
f ive key  f ea tures .  

The pos it ive  f ea tures  of  the O S AB  inclu de i ts  esta bl i shed a nd co mmi tted me mbership;  t he 
increa s ed pr omi nen ce  of  th e B oard wit h in part ner a ge ncies ;  the  devel ope d scru t iny  
f unct i on a nd report i ng mec ha nis ms;  a nd,  the e xpa nded remi t  thr oug h t he  es tabl ishm ent  
of  the Depr ivat i on of  L iberty  Sa f eguar ds  (DoLS)  a nd t he Dignit y in  Ca re sub gr oups.   

The O S AB  has  members  a cross  a  ra ng e of  a gencies  invol ve d in  bot h preventi on a nd 
intervent ion.  The B oard prov i des  a  c hal l enge a nd scrut i ny  f unct io n t hro ugh the rout i ne  
i tems:  perfor ma nce report i ng;  f eedba ck f rom inspect i o ns  an d a udi ts ,  dur i ng w hich 
a ssura nce  t ha t  ins pect ion rec om me nda t ions have bee n a ct ed up on i s  requeste d;  capa c ity 
a nd orga nisat ional  c ha nge;  a nd subgrou p report s.   

Ea ch c ore/stat ut ory  boar d member  or ga nisa ti on mus t  ha ve  a  des ig na te d di re ct or for  the 
impleme ntat i on of  sa f eguardi ng a dults ’  work a nd a  no mi na t ed senior  lea d representat ive 
on t he Sa feguar di ng Adults  B oa r d.  C ore/statutory  boar d me mbers must  be s uf f ic ien tl y  
seni or  in  their  orga n izat ions to  repre se nt  tha t or ga nisat i o n a nd ma ke mult i -a gency 
a gree me nts.  See pa r agra ph 6 a nd 7 of  O SAB  Terms of  Ref erence  (appendix 3)  a nd O S AB  
role  de scr ipt i o n (appen dix  1 )  

Page 72



P a g e  |  2 8 
 

 

Ka ty Whi fe ,  ema i l :  O S AB @O xfordshir e.g ov.uk,  webs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

The C ount y C oun ci l lor ,  e lected a s  Ca bi net  Me mber  f or  a dult  services  is  a  member  of  the 
O SA B .  The O S AB  Cha ir  and Ca bi net  Member prov i de l i nks to  t he Jo i nt  O xfords hire Heal th  
a nd W el l bei ng B oar d an d O xf ord shire C ount y C ounci l ’s  s crut iny  f unct ion.  S tra te gic  l in ks  
wit h O xf ords hire  County Cou nci l  Co mm unit y S af ety  t hr ou gh join t members hip a nd as  
out l i ne d in  t he O xf ords hi re  Count y  Counci l  Commu ni ty Sa fet y B us iness  pl a n.  

Ea ch subgr oup is  ch aired by  a  boa r d member.  Rep ort ing to  the  O SAB  is  v ia  rout i ne 
hi ghl i ght  reports .  The c oop erat io n of  partner s i s  evi denced by  pro gress  on acti ons.  O ther  
f orums e. g.  t he  Sa f eguar di ng L ea ds  m eet in g provi de a  f orum f or  mul t i -a ge nc y part ners t o  
di scuss and scope s i tua t i on s i n detai l .  

Mult i -a gen cy O S AB  pol ic ies  a n d procedures are in p lac e a nd are avai la ble  on t he O S AB 
Sa f e f rom Ha rm website.  T he  B oa r d ha s  a lso worked t o e nsure tha t  Sa f eguar di ng Adul ts  i s  
a ppropri a tely  ref erred t o in other  rel ev ant  p ol ic y,  procedur e a nd gui da nce  e .g.  the  l ocal  
Domest ic  Homic i de  Protocol .  

Area s  of  devel opme nt ha ve  be en hi ghl ig hted dur i n g thi s  exe rc ise.   

The d evelo pment of  an O SAB  strategy wa s  ide nt i f ied a s a  ke y area  of  devel opme nt.  

Report i ng mechanis ms to ot her  B oards a re in  pla ce  but  t her e  coul d  be further  w ork t o 
devel op their  ef f ic i enc y.  Pla ns  are  in p la ce to  es tabl is h f orm al  l inks wit h t he newly  
establ is hed O xf ordshire J oi nt  Hea lt h a nd Wel lbe i ng Par t ner ship B oard a n d a  pr otocol  i s  
be ing draf t ed be twe en t he O SAB  a nd t he O xf ords hi re  Sa f eg uardi ng Chi l dr ens B oard.  

Curre nt l y ,  en ga gem ent with servi ce  users  an d carers  i s  t hro ugh t he l i nk s and w ork of  
in div idua l  mem bers of  O SAB .  The need t o improv e enga gem ent wit h people  wh o use  
servi ces has  been hi g hl ig ht ed as  a n a rea  of  development .   

These area s of  deve lopmen t wi l l  be di sc ussed i n detai l  at  t he  B oard B us iness  Pl a nni ng 
da y,  pla nne d i n  J une 201 2.  F ol l owi ng thi s ,  a  B oa rd B usiness Pla n wi l l  be wr it ten to out l i ne  
the  prop osals  f or  a ddress i ng t he  area s  of  develop me nt a n d pr i or i t ies  f or  2 01 2 -2013.  

Priorities for 2012  

Throug h a  combi na t i on of  presentat i ons,  discus sio n a nd group wor k t he a tte nde es  of  the 
busi ness  pla nni ng meet i ng ass esse d t he progr ess of  t he  w or k of  the B oard ov er  the  las t  
year ,  expl ored op ti ons  t o develop t he  B oa rd a nd outl i ned pr ior i t ies  f or  the yea r  ahea d.  

The B oard pr i or i t ies  wi l l  be  out l i ne d in  t he B oa rd B usin ess Pla n 2 01 2-1 3 .  

The A nnual  R eport wi l l  be  tak en to  t he O xf ords hi re  J oi nt  H eal th  a n d Wel lbei n g B oard 
a nnual l y  

Page 73



P a g e  |  2 9 
 

 

Ka ty Whi fe ,  ema i l :  O S AB @O xfordshir e.g ov.uk,  webs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

Appendix 1 

Role Description for Safeguarding Adults Board 
Members 

1 .  The B oard member  must  ha ve  (or  be  gi ven)  suf f i c ient  a ut hor i ty  wit hin  t hei r  own 

a gency to b e a ble  t o  represe nt  t he ir  a gency’s  v iew to t he  B oa rd.  

2 .  The B oard member  must  be  ab le to (or  be  given t he aut hor i ty t o)  commit  t he 

resourc es  of  their  a ge nc y to support  t h e wor k of  t he  Sa f eguardi ng B oard.  

3 .  The B oard member  must  ensure t ha t  the B oa rd is  inf ormed of  a l l  re levant  pr of ess iona l  

a nd practi ce  issues  tha t wi l l  impa ct  on t he  ab i l i t y of  t he  ag encies  re presented o n t he  

B oard to  wor k toget her  t o saf egua r d vul nerabl e a dul ts  in  the Cou nty.  

4.  The B oard member  must  be  ab le to i nf luence the strategic  pla nni n g f or  sa fegu ardi ng 

vulnera bl e a dults  wi thi n  t he ir  a genc y.  

5 .  The B oard member  must  be  ab le to secure  a ppropri ate i nf ormat ion f rom t hei r  age nc y 

to sup por t  t he  w ork of  the B oa rd.  

6.  The B oard member  must  represe nt  the  posit i o n of  th e B oard wi thi n t heir  o wn agenc y,  

whether  t hi s  i s  i n c onf l i ct  wit h t h eir  a gency or  not.  

7 .  The B oard member  must  ensure t ha t  dec is ions of  t he  B oa rd a re  prom ote d wit hi n  t he ir  

ow n or ga nisat i o n a nd a ny impedi ments  or  dela ys  t o their  im pl ementa t ion are re ported 

to t he B oard.  

8.  The B oard member  must  ensure t ha t  the work of  t he Board,  i ts  pol ic ies  a nd de c is ions,  

i s  com mu nicat ed ef f ect ively  wit hi n  their  ow n a gen cy.  

 

  

Page 74



P a g e  |  30  
 

 

Ka ty Whi fe ,  ema i l :  O S AB @O xfordshir e.g ov.uk,  webs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

Appendix 2 

Role Description for the Independent Chair 

1 .  To ensure t ha t  the O xf ords hi re  Sa f egua rding A dul ts  B oard (O S AB ) opera tes ef f ect ive ly 

a nd exercis es  i ts  f unct ions  a nd respo ns ibi l i t i es  as  set  o ut  in  No S ecrets  a nd 

O xf ordshire S af egua rding A dult s  B oa rd’s  pol ic ies  a nd pr oce dures ,  a nd al l  new 

legis lat i o n,  regula t i on s a nd gui dan ce  regardi n g safegua rdi n g a dults .  

2 .  L ead t he  Sa feguardi n g Ad ults  B oard i n  t he  impl eme ntat io n of  the S af eg ua rding Adult s  

a gen da and t oget her  with the execut ive  grou p determi ne  pr ior i t ies  in s erv ice 

devel opm ent.  

3 .  Prov id i ng independenc e a nd qua l i ty assurance in t he conduct of  t he O xf ords hi re  

Sa f eguardi ng A dults  B oard and i ts  subgroups.  

4.  Ensure t ha t  perform a nce ma nagement is  integra ted i nt o t he  role  an d f unct i o n of  the 

Sa f eguardi ng A dults  B oard and i ts  subgroups  t o del iver  i mprove d outco mes f or  

vulnera bl e a dul ts  a nd their  carers .   

5 .  Encoura ge a nd support  t he devel opment of  part ners hip w or ki ng betw ee n t he  pa rtner  

members  of  t he S af egua rdi ng A dul ts  B oa rd an d i ts  s ubgroups.  

6.  To pr om ote  t he Oxf ords hire  Sa f eguar di ng A dults  B oard’ s  a bi l i ty  t o i ndepen de ntly fu l f i l  

s tatutor y  obj ecti ves  of  moni tor i n g,  c ha l l en ge a nd scruti nise the eff ect iveness of  inter-

a gency wor ki ng to  sa f eguard vu l nera ble  adults /a dults  at  r is k.   

  

Page 75



P a g e  |  31  
 

 

Ka ty Whi fe ,  ema i l :  O S AB @O xfordshir e.g ov.uk,  webs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

Appendix 3 

Oxfordshire Safeguarding Adults Board Terms of 
Reference  

1.  Background information about the Board 

1.1.  The creat ion of  a local  mul t i -agency management commit tee (safeguarding 
adul ts)  as a means of  achiev ing ef fect ive inter-agency work ing was 
recommended in the Department of  Heal th report  No Secrets:  Guidance on 
developing and implement ing mul t i -agency pol ic ies and procedures to 
protect  vulnerable adul ts f rom abuse (2000).  This guidance, issued under 
Sect ion 7 of  the Local  Author i ty  Social  Services Act  1970 ,  requi res local  
author i t ies in thei r  social  services funct ions to play a coordinat ing role in the 
development of  local  pol ic ies and procedures for the protect ion of  vulnerable 
adul ts f rom abuse. 

1.2.  A mult i -agency working group was es tabl ished in Oxfordshi re in 2001, which 
led to the development of  the Oxfordshi re Codes of  Pract ice for the 
Protect ion of  Al l  Vulnerable Adul ts  f rom Abuse, Exploi tat ion and 
Mistreatment in May 2002 and the development of  the Oxfordshi re Adul t  
Protect ion Committee.  

1.3.  The publ icat ion of  Safeguarding Adul ts – A nat ional  f ramework of  s tandards 
for good pract ice and outcomes in adul t  protect ion work  (ADSS, 2005) led 
the commit tee to re-evaluate i ts  exist ing t i t le and terms of  reference and 
become the Oxfordshi re Safeguarding Adul ts  Board.  

1.4.  The Oxfordshi re’s  Safeguarding Adul ts  Procedures (2009) superseded 
Oxfordshi re Codes of  Pract ice for the Protect ion of  Al l  Vulnerable Adul ts  
f rom Abuse, Exploi tat ion and Mistreatment (2002).  

2.  Purpose 

2.1.  The purpose of  the Oxfordshi re Safeguarding Adul ts Board is to create a 
f ramework wi th in which al l  responsible agencies work together to ensure a 
coherent  pol icy for the protect ion of  vulnerable adul ts at  r isk of  abuse and a 
consistent  and ef fect ive response to any ci rcumstances giving ground for  
concern or formal  complaints or expressions of  anxiety.  

3    Structure 

3.1 The main board wi l l  be supported by f ive sub-groups:  Pol icy and Pract ice;  
Training;  Digni ty in Care;  Deprivat ion of  Liberty Safeguards and Serious 
Case Review. The Chairs of  these sub-groups wi l l  be members of  the 
Oxfordshi re Safeguarding Adul ts Board.  

Page 76



P a g e  |  32  
 

 

Ka ty Whi fe ,  ema i l :  O S AB @O xfordshir e.g ov.uk,  webs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

3.2 The structure chart  below shows the roles and responsibi l i t ies of  the 
commi t tees responsible for implement ing the safeguarding requi rements.  

4. Main Features & Responsibi l i t ies 

The Oxfordshi re Safeguarding Adul ts  Board’s responsibi l i t ies are: 

4.1.  To encourage and promote the development of  serv ices that :  recognise the 
r ights of  vulnerable people;  enable vulnerable people to l ive safely and f ree 
f rom abuse, and;  act ively promote individual ’s access to mainstream cr iminal  
just ice and vict im support  services  

4.2.  To oversee the development and implementat ion and review of  local  
pol ic ies and procedures for the protect ion of  vulnerable adul ts  f rom abuse in 
Oxfordshi re that  ensure:  

•  The abuse of  vulnerable adul ts  is ident i f ied where i t  is occurr ing  
•  That  there is  a clear report ing pathway 
•  That  there is  an ef fect ive and coordinated response to abuse where i t  is 

occurr ing 
•  That  the needs and wishes of  the vulnerable adul t  are central  to the adul t  

protect ion process 

4.3.  To encourage and promote a f ramework which ensures that  al l  individuals 
and agencies work ing wi th vulnerable people understand what is meant by 
abuse and thei r  role and responsibi l i t ies in report ing and responding to 
concerns of  abuse, and act ively work together to:   

•  Respond ef fect ively to abuse where i t  is ident i f ied  
•  Act to reduce the r isk of  harm to vulnerable people as a resul t  of  abuse 
•  Develop & implement strategies designed to safeguard vulnerable adul ts  f rom 

abuse 
This includes:  

i  developing and agreeing local  pol ic ies and procedures for inter-agency 
work to protect  vulnerable adul ts,  wi thin the nat ional  f ramework provided 
by “No Secrets”  

i i  audi t ing and evaluat ing how wel l  local  serv ices work together to protect  
vulnerable adul ts ,  for example through wider case audi ts  

i i i  encouraging and helping develop ef fect ive work ing relat ionships between 
di f ferent  services and professional  groups,  based on t rust  and mutual  
understanding 

iv ensuring that  there is  a level  of  agreement and understanding across 
agencies about operat ional  def ini t ions and thresholds for intervent ion 

v improving local  ways of  working in the l ight  of  knowledge gained through 
nat ional  and local  exper ience and research,  and to make sure that  any 
lessons learned are shared,  understood, and acted upon 

vi  undertaking case reviews where an adul t  has died or – in certain 
c i rcumstances – been ser iously harmed, and abuse or  neglect  are 
conf i rmed or suspected 

vii  making sure that any lessons are understood and acted upon 

Page 77



P a g e  |  33  
 

 

Ka ty Whi fe ,  ema i l :  O S AB @O xfordshir e.g ov.uk,  webs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

vii i  communicat ing clear ly to indiv idual  serv ices and professional  groups thei r  
shared responsibi l i ty for protect ing vulnerable adul ts ,  and to explain how 
each can contr ibute 

ix helping improve the qual i ty of  adul t  protect ion work and of  inter-agency 
work ing through speci fying needs for inter-agency t ra ining and 
development,  and ensur ing that  t rain ing is  del ivered 

x ra is ing awareness wi th in the wider communi ty of  the need to safeguard 
vulnerable adul ts  and promote thei r  wel fare and to exp lain how the wider 
communi ty can contr ibute to these object ives 

xi act ively seeking to  ident i fy where there is  a r isk of  inst i tut ional  abuse to 
vulnerable adul ts ,  and 

xii  developing strategies to prevent the abuse of  vulnerable adul ts  whenever 
possible  

xii i  moni tor ing,  col lect ing and analysing informat ion in accordance wi th local  
and government requi rements  

xiv working wi th local  and adjacent area chi ld and adul t  safeguarding boards 
xv ensuring compl iance wi th formal  government requi rements.  

5. Reporting 

5.1.  The Board wi l l  report  annual ly to the Oxfordshi re County Counci l ,  Social  & 
Communi ty Serv ices Scrut iny Commit tee.   

5.2.  In addi t ion each core/statutory member of  the Oxfordshi re Safeguarding 
Adul ts Board wi l l  be expected to report  to i ts  own management committee.  

5.3.  The Board wi l l  produce an annual  report  that  wi l l  include a review of  the 
previous years’  work.  This report  wi l l  be subject  to scrut iny by the 
Oxfordshi re Social  Services,  Social  and Communi ty Serv ices Scrut iny 
Commit tee 

5.4.  The f ive board subgroups wi l l  contr ibute to the Board’s annual  report  

5.5.  Individual  member reports  wi l l  be included as annexes to the annual  Board 
report .  

6. Membership 

6.1.  Each core/statutory board member organisat ion must have a designated 
di rector for the implementat ion of  safeguarding adul ts ’  work and a nominated 
senior lead representat ive on the Safeguarding Adul ts Board.  Core/statutory 
board members must be suf f ic ient ly senior in thei r  organizat ions to represent 
that  organisat ion and make mul t i -agency agreements.  

7. Member responsibi l i t ies 

7.1.  Each core/statutory member of  The Board is  commit ted to the aims, 
object ives and pr incip les out l ined in the Oxfordshi re’s  Safeguarding Adul ts  
Procedures (2009) .  To this  end each partner agency wi l l :  

a.  Have a set  of  internal  guidel ines and report ing structure,  which are 
consistent  wi th the Oxfordshi re’s  Safeguarding Adul ts Procedures,  and 
which set  out  the responsibi l i t ies of  al l  workers to work wi th in the 
Oxfordshi re Codes of  Pract ice 

Page 78



P a g e  |  34 
 

 

Ka ty Whi fe ,  ema i l :  O S AB @O xfordshir e.g ov.uk,  webs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

b. Ensure that  al l  staf f  members and vo lunteers at  a l l  levels have t ra ining and 
information commensurate wi th thei r ro le in relat ion to the Oxfordshi re 
Codes of  Pract ice 

c.  Ensure that  al l  adul t  safeguarding concerns are systemat ical ly logged along 
wi th the act ions taken and outcomes ar is ing 

7.2.  In addi t ion each agency wi l l  undertake an annual  r isk assessment/review 
of  services provided by the organisat ion and establ ish an agreed act ion plan 
for promot ing the protect ion of  vulnerable people served by the organisat ion.  

7.3.  Each core/statutory member of  the Oxfordshi re Safeguarding Adul ts  Board 
wi l l  provide an annual  report  to the board detai l ing progress and 
developments in relat ion to 5.1 and 5.2 above.  

8. Frequency of Meetings 

8.1.  Quarter ly 

  

Page 79



P a g e  |  0 
 

Reporting your concerns 

Ever ybod y worki ng wit h vul nerable 
peopl e is  res po ns ibl e  f or  maki ng sure,  
wit hin  thei r  Codes  of  Pra ct ice,  th at  no 
a ct ion or  omiss i on on their  part  ha r ms 
the  wel lbei n g of  serv ice users .   

I f  you a re a ware of  any vul nera ble  pers on 
who has  been ha rmed or  abuse d or  i s  a t  
r isk of  ha rm y ou mu st  rep ort  i t .  

Oxfordshire Social & Community 
Services  

O xf ordshire S oc ia l  & Comm uni ty  S ervi ces 
ha ve  pr ocedures  f or  dea l ing wi t h cases  of  
vulnera bl e a dul t  abuse.  They ca n of f er  
informa t ion a nd a dv ice to  he lp y ou i n 
deci di ng wha t you wan t to  do and i n 
some ca ses  ma y be  ab le to  pr ov ide  yo u 
wit h pra cti ca l  he l p a nd support .  The  f i rst  
pr ior i ty  wi l l  be to  try  a nd ensur e  t hat  y ou 
a re  saf e.  

Te lep hone :  0845 0 507 6 66  

SMS:  07 78 8 571577  

F ax:  0186 5 7 83111  

Ad dress:  Socia l  an d He alth Care team,  P O 
B ox 780,  Oxf or d,  OX 1  9GX  

soc ia la nd hea lt hcare@ oxf ordshire. g ov.u k 

O ut  of  hours emer gency:  0800 833408   

www. oxf or dshire. gov.u k 

Thames Valley Police 

Abuse is  of te n a  cr i me.  I f  you t hi nk a  
cr i me ha s bee n c om mi tte d c onta ct  t he  
pol ice.  

Non-emer ge nc y num ber:  101  

I n an emergency d ia l :  999  

www. t hamesva l ley. pol ice. uk 

Care Quality Commission (CQC) 

I f  you,  a  f r iend or  re la t i ve ,  l ive in  a  ca re  
ho me or  have car e at  home a nd a re n ot  
ha ppy wit h th e care  tha t  y ou are  gett i n g 
you c an c onta ct  CQ C w ho ca n gi ve  you 
a dvi ce  on wh at  y our  r ights  are and ho w 
to c ompla i n.  

Ca l l  t hem on:  03000 616161  

Ema i l  t he m o n:  e nqu ir ies@cqc.or g.u k 

F ind out  more a t :  w ww. cqc. org. uk  

 

Page 80



P a g e  |  1  
 

 

Ka ty W hif e ,  emai l :  O SA B @O xf ordshir e.g ov. uk,  we bs ite:  ww w.saf ef rom ha rm. or g.uk  

 

 
Alterna t ive f orma ts  of  th is  publ icat i on ca n be ma de a va i la bl e .   

T hese i nc lude ot her  la ngua ges,  la rge pr i nt ,  B ra i l le ,  Ea sy  Rea d,  
audi ocassette,  com puter  disc  or  e ma i l .  

Please  tele phone 01 865 32 8232  

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



HWB10 

 

 

 

 
OXFORDSHIRE CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP 

 PLANNING PROCESS AND TIMELINES 
 
PROCESS 
 
Alignment with Health and Well Being Board 
We held a joint workshop (Health and Well Being Board, County Council, 
Districts and Local Involvement Network) on 7th February to review available 
indicators and agree which need to be included in the revised Health and Well 
Being Strategy and which three will best measure improvement in our priority 
areas and should be reflected in the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 
quality premium proposals.  This workshop showed alignment of key themes 
and is being used to influence the development of our plan going forward. 
 
Internal working 
The Associate Director of Strategy and Governance leads a working group 
involving all Assistant Directors, Public Health and representatives from the 
Commissioning Support Unit.  This group meets weekly to ensure that all 
input to the plan is coordinated and delivered to time.  The main focus of work 
for the next few weeks is to ensure that all programmes of work have clear 
plans with milestones, timescales and key performance indicators. 
 
Locality engagement  
All the Localities have successfully involved their practices in developing a 
Locality plan.  These plans form a part of the overall CCG plan.  During 
February and the early part of March Localities will review the plan in its 
entirety to enable further refinement and get Locality sign up to their role in 
delivering the plan. 
 
Provider engagement and alignment 
The CCG Executive Team have held initial discussions with both Oxford 
University Hospitals (OUH) and Oxford Health outlining the main elements of 
this operational plan.  A system wide meeting involving the CCG, OUH, 
Oxford Health, Social Care and the Ambulance Trust was held on 4th 
February to align commissioning intentions and share information about cost 
improvement plans across Oxfordshire.  Contract discussions are ongoing 
and a session focusing on areas of activity reduction/change will be held on 
15th March with OUH. 
 
Engagement and alignment with HOSC 
Members of the Executive team had an informal meeting with members of 
Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 28th January and the draft 
Operating Plan was one of the areas for discussion. 

Agenda Item 10

Page 83



HWB10 

 

TIMESCALES 
 
 
25th January   First submission to Area Team 
 
31st January  OCCG Shadow Governing Body review first draft plan 
 
7th February  OCCG meeting with National Commissioning Board Area 

Team to receive feedback 
 
End February Resubmission of finance templates and update on 

contract negotiations 
 
18th March Presentation to NHS Commissioning Board regional and 

Area teams 
 
28th March OCCG Governing Body sign off plan 
 
31st March Contracts signed 
 
5th April Final OCCG plans submitted to Area Team 

 

 
 
 
Catherine Mountford 
Associate Director of Strategy and Governance 
27 February 2013 

Page 84



HWB10 

SHADOW HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD – 14 MARCH 2013 
 

Resources that can be influenced by the Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
This paper sets out the resources which the Health and Wellbeing Board can 
influence. 
 
Table 1 shows the total budgets which will be held by some partners of the Health 
and Wellbeing Board in 2013-14.   A proportion of the total amount is within pooled 
budgets – as set out in Table 2 below.  As can be seen, this is a very small fraction 
of total spending.  The Health and Wellbeing Board has influence over all of this, 
including the pooled budget elements which are formally the responsibility of the 
Joint Management Groups. It should be noted that the amounts quoted in Table 2 
are for 2012/3  
 
Both the County Council and the Clinical Commissioning Group are expected to 
increase their contributions to the Older People pool to create a genuinely pooled 
budget.  However, work on this has not yet concluded. 
 
The work of other partners which also contributes to Health and Wellbeing in the 
County includes: 
 

1. District Councils  
 

• Leisure services 
• Cultural services,  
• Regeneration,  
• Housing Development,  
• Advice and support,  
• Community Safety,  
• Environmental Health,  
• Emergency Planning,  
• Air Quality,  
• Food Safety,  
• Contaminated Land,  
• Pest and Noise Control,  
• Fuel Poverty

. 
2. Schools and Academies 
3. Early Years Providers 
4. Further Education 

 
  

Page 85



HWB10 

Table 1. Total Budgets available in 2013-14 in some partner organisations 
 

Organisation / 
Directorate 

Budget for 
2013-14 

Major areas of expenditure 

Oxfordshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

£667m • Acute care                              £350m 
• Community Health                   £73m 
• Mental Health                          £52m 
• Prescribing                              £81m 
• Continuing Care                      £42m 
• Other care                               £18m 
• Corporate and other                £51m 
 

National Commissioning 
Board Area Team 
(Thames Valley) 

£524m • Primary Care 
• Specialist commissioning      
• Offender health 

Adult Social Care 
(Oxfordshire County 
Council) 

£161.5m This is split between  
• older people                                £73m 
• adults with a learning disability   £62m 
• adults with a mental health need  £9m 
• adults with a physical disability   £11m 
• all client groups                           £2.5m 
• and joint commissioning               £4m 

Housing related support 
(Oxfordshire County 
Council) 

£4.5m • Preventing homelessness, including 
offenders, domestic abuse) 

• Floating support 
Children’s Services 
(Oxfordshire County 
Council) 

£106m 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Schools and 
Academies 
£400m 

 
Other £26m 

• Higher Level SEN                        £26m 
• Childrens’ Centres                       £10m 
• Early Intervention                         £10m 
• Education Statutory Services*     £12m 

*(excludes traded services, H2S transport, 
place planning, asset management) 

• Disabled Children                          £7m 
• Other Childrens’ Social Care       £39m 
• Directors Office / Safeguarding    £2m    

 
 

• Schools & Academies             £400m     
(includes estimates of academy funding) 
 
 

• Early Years Providers                 £24m 
• Higher Needs in FE colleges        £2m 
 

Public Health 
(Oxfordshire County 
Council) 

£24m • Sexual health services 
• Drugs and Alcohol Treatment services 
• Health protection 
• Health Improvement 

 

Page 86



HWB10 

 

Table 2  Pooled budgets for 2012-13  
 

Joint 
Commissioning 
Arrangement for 
decision making 

Total budget 
(2012-13) 

Oxfordshire 
County Council 
Contribution 

Clinical 
Commissioning 
Grp contribution 

Current 
Accountability  

 

Older People and 
Physical Disability 
Joint Management 
Group 

 
Older People         

£107m 
 

 
Older People         

£82m 
 

 
Older People         

£25m 
 

 
Director of 
Social and 
Community 
Services  

Physical 
Disability £ 

17m 

 
Physical 

Disability £10m 
 

 
Physical 

Disability   £7m 

Learning Disability 
Joint Management 
Group 
 

 
£76m 

 
£64m 

 
(£3.5m more in 
2013-14 for 

housing related 
support) 

 
£12m 

 
Director of 
Social and 
Community 
Services 

Mental Health 
Joint Management 
Group 

 
£48m 

 
£7m 
 

(£1.8m more in 
2013-14 for 

housing related 
support) 

 
£41m 

 
Chief Clinical 
Officer, 
Oxfordshire 
CCG 

 
Housing Related 
Support  
(recommendations 
will be made 
through Health 
Improvement 
Board from 2013-
14)  

  
 
 

£4.4m 

  
Director of 
Social and 
community 
services 

 

Page 87



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
Information Report for Oxfordshire Health and Wellbeing Board, March 2013 

 
Introduction 
The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) is a shared data source which sets out the 
major health needs facing Oxfordshire.  We are talking about health here in its broadest 
sense, not just about specific diseases. Producing a JSNA is a shared duty of County Councils 
and Clinical Commissioning Groups through their Health and Wellbeing Boards. The findings 
are expected to have a strong influence on the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  The 
JSNA has been redesigned and refreshed during 2012-13 and its main findings are presented 
here.    From this analysis it can be concluded that the current priorities set out in the Joint 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy should be continued.   
 
Development of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment in 2012-13 has resulted in a broader 
and more easily accessible collection of data.  For the first time we have brought together a 
wider set of indicators for analysis, including community safety data, information on the 
Military Community in the county and data relating to social determinants of health such as 
housing, employment and skills.  This information now sits alongside the health and social 
care data collection that has been so well used in previous JSNA reports.  The data collection 
is also more accessible to a wide range of partners and stakeholders and they have been 
more engaged in the process of development. 
 
This report covers the headlines of the JSNA.  Further detail, including the raw data for 
further analysis, will be available through the JSNA pages of the Oxfordshire Insight website.  
This data should be seen as a starting point setting out major themes.  All organisations will 
want to carry our further analysis on each issue that we have highlighted here.   
 
Summary of Analysis for this report 
 
Following discussions with partner organisations and the voluntary and community sector, 
the JSNA steering group agreed a wide range of indicators for analysis. These indicators 
were drawn from a wider range of sources than in previous years, including: 

- Public Health  
- Clinical Commissioning Group 
- County Council Commissioning data 
- District Councils 
- Thames Valley Police 
- 2011 Census 
- The Office for National Statistics 
- The Department for Work and Pensions 

 
Where possible, the analysis looked at the historical trends to see whether needs had 
increased or decreased over the past year, and whether this was part of a sustained trend. 
Data was also looked at by Districts and smaller localities to see whether there were 
differences in health for different areas of the county.  
Overall there were few statistically significant variations when compared to the previous 
year. This is to be expected given that health changes at the population level are slow 

Page 89



 

2 
 

moving, and as such, any trends must be treated cautiously. Data from the census helped to 
give more information about longer term trends. Where relevant trends were observed, 
these have been outlined below. 
 
The key trends are presented by theme below: 
 
 
Key Findings 
 
1.  Population 
 
• The population of Oxfordshire increased from 607,300 to 654,800 between 2001 and 

2011. This is an increase of 8%. 
• The number of people aged over 65 increased by 19% between 2001 and 2011. The rate 

of growth was much higher in the predominantly rural districts (over 20%) than Oxford 
City where there has been a 5% fall in the number of people over 65. 

• The number of children aged 0-4 has increased by 13%. The rate of increase has been 
much higher in Oxford City (28%) compared to other districts (between 2% and 11%).   

• The birth rate is relatively stable among UK born mothers but has increased by 37% 
among mothers born outside the UK.  

• The proportion of black and minority ethnic groups in Oxfordshire has increased from 
4% of the total population to 9% between 2001 and 2011. 

• The proportion of the population who were born outside the UK increased from 10% of 
the population to 14% between 2001 and 2011. 

• Eight wards in Oxfordshire (5 in the City and 3 in Banbury) show particularly poor 
outcomes across a range of indicators including child poverty, low skills, low income, 
poor attainment, higher crime and poor health1.   

 
 
 
2.  Employment, economy and skills 
 
• Whilst the percentage of people claiming the Job Seekers Allowance in Oxfordshire has 

remained below the national and regional level, the rate of increase was higher: 
o The number of Job Seekers Allowance Claimants increased by 115% in 

Oxfordshire compared to 98% in the South East during the period of February 
2002 to February 2012. 

o The rate of increase for the ten year period was highest in Cherwell (141%) and 
West Oxfordshire (140%). 

• The proportion of economically inactive people in Oxfordshire was lower (27%) than 
England (30%) and the South East region (28%) at the time of the Census (June 2011). 

o Oxford is the only district with an above average proportion of economically 
inactive people (37%) although this is primarily due to the number of 
economically inactive students (22% of the working age population). 

                                            
1
 The wards are Blackbird Leys, Greater Leys, Littlemore, Rose Hill & Iffley, Barton and Sandhills, Banbury 

Ruscote, Banbury Neithrop and Grimsbury & Castle Page 

Page 90



 

3 
 

• Oxfordshire contains a higher proportion of people (36%) with level 4 qualifications 
(undergraduate degree or equivalent) than England (27%) and the South East (30%). 

o The proportion is highest in Oxford City at 42% of the population. 
o Oxford City, Banbury, and Abingdon also contain wards with high proportions of 

people with Level 1 (1-4 GCSEs or equivalent) or no qualifications. 
• The cost of housing relative to income for the poorest 25% of people is comparatively 

high in Oxfordshire at 9:1, representing a 33% increase from 2001 to 2011. 
o This is the fifth highest ratio of any county in the South East. 
o At district level this ratio is highest in Oxford City and South Oxfordshire at 10:1 

• There have been a high number of unfilled job vacancies over the past 12 months in the 
Home Care/Care Assistant field. 

o This has been particularly pronounced in West Oxfordshire and Oxford City.  
 
 
3.  Housing and living environment 
 
• There is a lack of affordable housing across the county and particularly in Oxford.  
• The pattern of housing tenure is distinct in Oxford City with a much higher proportion of 

private rented housing (28%) than other districts (13% to 16%). 
• There are higher rates of household overcrowding in the city (number of residents per 

bedroom) with 13.9% of households deemed to be overcrowded, compared to 6.9% for 
Oxfordshire. This may be due in large part to the high number of multiple occupancy 
student accommodation units.  

• The number of new houses built each year has declined in recent years from 3500 in 
2005/06 to 1500 in 2010/11. The number of newly built affordable houses has remained 
fairly constant, fluctuating between 500 and 600 over the same period. 

 
 
4.  Armed Forces, their families and Veterans 
 
• There are approximately 9500 serving personnel in the county whose Primary Health 

Care is provided by the Defence Medical Services. The county also has approximately 
1200 military family members whose Primary Health Care is also provided by military 
GPs and not by the NHS. 

• According to longitudinal studies at the national level, outcomes are often good for 
veterans. However, there is an observable above-average incidence of 
depression/anxiety disorders and alcohol misuse for some veterans. This group is also 
more likely than the general population to find it difficult to seek help. 

• There is currently little data available to calculate reliably the number of veterans in the 
local population. 

 
 
5. Community safety 
 
• The rate of police recorded offences in Oxfordshire fell from 87.2 to 57.9 per 1000 people 

between 2003 and 2012. 

Page 91



 

4 
 

o Oxford City had more than double the rate of offences (110.2) compared to Cherwell 
(55.0), South Oxfordshire (40.6), West Oxfordshire (34.4), and the Vale (36.6). 

o The Crime Survey for England and Wales suggests that the level of recorded crime does 
not reflect the true incidence of crime in the population. Although figures are not 
available for Oxfordshire, the estimated prevalence of crime for the South East region 
was around 83 incidents per 1000 people for the 12 months prior to 2012. 

• Police recorded violent offences have been falling since 2008 across the county, from 15.9 to 
11.5 per 1000 people. 

• The police recorded incidence of Sexual Offences been relatively constant over the past 9 years 
fluctuating between 1.2 and 1.5 per 1000 people. 

 
 
6. Giving Children and Young People the best start in life 
 
• Breastfeeding rates at initiation are high in Oxfordshire at 78.7%. This is significantly 

higher than the national rate of 74.5%. A similar rate is found in all districts. . 
• The proportion of overweight children in reception year is 7.3%. This is significantly 

below the national level of 9.4%  Both local and national levels are rising gradually.  
• The proportion of year 6 pupils considered obese is more than double the rate for 

reception age children at 15.5%. However it remains below the national rate for year 6 
children, which is 19.20%. 

• School attainment remains a mixed picture but there is improvement in performance in 
younger age groups. Inequalities in outcome remain. 

• Teenage pregnancy rates reduced from 28.4 per 1000 females aged 15-17 (2007-2009), 
to 25.9 for the period 2008 to 2010. Oxford City remains significantly above the county 
rate at 33.6. 

• The rate of referrals to children’s social care increased from 389.5 to 460.7 per 10,000 
under 18s from 2010/11 to 2011/12.   

o This is lower than the national rate but higher than the ‘statistical neighbour’ 
average. 

o It represents an increase of 18.3% compared to a fall of 4.2% at the national 
level. 

• The number of repeat referrals to children’s social care increased by 57% between 
2009/10 and 2011/12. 

 
 
7. Ensuring people live well and independently 
 
• The percentage of residents who reported their health to be very bad or bad in the June 2011 

Census was lower than the regional and national average. 
• Oxfordshire contains a lower proportion of households with at least one adult with a long term 

health problem or disability (21.7%) than the South East region (23.6%) and the country (26.0%). 
• The number of referrals to adult social care has grown at a higher rate than that which would be 

expected through the effects of an aging population.  
• The proportion of Adult Social Care Users who report having enough control over their lives was 

78.6% in 2011/12. This puts it in the top 25 % of local authorities nationwide. 
• 62.2% of clients in Oxfordshire received self-directed support in 2011/12. This is the 18th highest 

proportion of all local authorities. 

Page 92



 

5 
 

• Oxfordshire county council supports 4,500 people to provide unpaid care to another person. 
o The proportion of people who reported that they provide some form of unpaid care is 

much higher at 61,130. 
o There appear to be higher proportions of people providing unpaid care in rural areas 

compared with urban and suburban areas. 
• 29% of people aged over 65 were living alone at the time of the census. 

o Across districts, it is estimated that this rate is highest in Oxford City, at 36% of the 
population. 

• At 30.2 per 1000 people, the rate of people claiming disability living allowance in February 2012 
in Oxfordshire was well below the national rate (50.4). Districts range from 25.9 in South 
Oxfordshire to 33.8 in Oxford City. 

o However, when only mental health related conditions (Psychosis, Psychoneurosis, 
Personality Disorder, Dementia) are considered, the rate for Oxford City (8.4 per 1000 
people) is above the national rate (7.4) 

 
 
8. Preventing chronic health problems and early death 
• Life expectancy for both men and women in Oxfordshire is higher than the England 

average.  
• Estimates for 2011/12 suggest that the number of adults participating in physical activity 

is higher in Oxfordshire (27.4%) than in the South East (24.7%) or England 22.9%. 
• The rates of immunisation in Oxfordshire are significantly above the national rates. 
• Hospital admissions for alcohol related harm are increasing, especially for men. 
• Oxfordshire contains below average prevalence of most of the diseases in the quality outcomes 

framework. Out of 20 diseases recorded measured by General  Practice  the following conditions 
were more prevalent than the UK average in 2011/12: 

o Cancer, Depression, Asthma, Atrial Fibrillation, Chronic Liver Disease 
• These figures may reflect the thoroughness of our GP services in identifying disease early rather 

than high disease rates in the population. 
• The uptake of cervical cancer screening increased by 6% among younger women (25-49 

yrs) and fell by 2% among older women (50-64 yrs) between 2007/08 and 2011/12. The 
rate remains higher for older women than for younger women although the gap is 
closing. 

• The diagnosis and early recognition of dementia is increasing across the county and is 
particularly high in West Oxfordshire.  

 
 
Conclusion 
Analysis of the information available for this report leads to the conclusion that the 
priorities currently set out in the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy should be taken 
forward in 2013-14. 
 The 11 priority areas are: 
Children and Young People 
 
Priority 1: All children have a healthy start in life and stay healthy into adulthood 
Priority 2: Narrowing the gap for our most disadvantaged and vulnerable groups 
Priority 3: Keeping all children and young people safer 
Priority 4: Raising achievement for all children and young people 

Page 93



 

6 
 

 
Adult Health and Social Care 
 

Priority 5: Living and working well: Adults with long term conditions, physical or learning 
disability or mental health problems living independently and achieving their full potential 

Priority 6: Support older people to live independently with dignity whilst reducing the need 
for care and support 

Priority 7: Working together to improve quality and value for money in the Health and 
Social Care System 

 
Health Improvement 
 
Priority 8: Preventing early death and improving quality of life in later years 
Priority 9: Preventing chronic disease through tackling obesity 
Priority 10: Tackling the broader determinants of health through better housing and 
preventing homelessness 
Priority 11: Preventing infectious disease through immunisation 
 
 
Next steps 
The JSNA Steering Group will continue to develop the data collection which underpins the 
JSNA throughout 2013-14 in the light of feedback from commissioners and service planners.  
This work will include further analysis of groups with “protected characteristics” (age, 
disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion and belief, sex, sexual orientation). 
 
 

Alexandra Bailey, Simon Grove-White.  March 2013 

Page 94


	Agenda
	5 Note of Decisions of Last Meeting
	7 Performance Report
	8 Themed Discussion - Implications for Oxfordshire of the Mid-Staffordshire Report
	HWB_MAR1413R04

	9 Safeguarding Adults Board - Annual Report 2011-2012
	HWB_MAR1413R06

	10 Planning processes and information on resources that can be influenced by the Health & Wellbeing Board
	HWB_MAR1413R09

	Papers for Information Only

